
 
                                  

 
 
                                                            

AGENDA 
 

For a SPECIAL meeting of the 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL & 
RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

to be held on 

THURSDAY, 24 AUGUST 2006 
at 

2.30 PM 
in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM 

Duncan Kerr, Chief Executive    

 

Panel 
Members: 

Councillor David Brailsford, Councillor Dorrien Dexter, Councillor 
Kenneth Joynson, Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, 
Councillor Albert Victor Kerr, Councillor John Kirkman (Chairman), 
Councillor Reg Lovelock M.B.E. (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Andrew 
Roy Moore, Councillor John Nicholson (Chairman), Councillor Stanley 
Pease, Councillor Mrs Judy Smith, Councillor Ian Stokes, Councillor 
Gerald Taylor, Councillor Mike Williams (Vice-Chairman) and 
Councillor Mrs Azar Woods 

  
 
Scrutiny Officer: Paul Morrison 01476 406512 p.morrison@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Scrutiny Support  
Officer: Rebecca Chadwick 01476 406297 r.chadwick@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Jo Toomey 01476 406152 j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
  

 

Members of the Panel are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed below. 

 
1. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Panel’s discretion. 
  
2. MEMBERSHIP 
 The Panel to be notified of any substitute members. 
  
3. APOLOGIES 
  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 Members are asked to declare interests in matters for consideration at the meeting. 

 



5. DRAFT GRANTHAM TOWN CENTRE MASTERPLAN 
 Presentation by the Grantham Town Centre Manager on the draft Grantham 

Masterplan. 
 

a) The Economic DSP will lead discussion on the content of the draft 
Masterplan document. 

 
b) The Resources DSP will lead discussion on financial implications of the 

draft Masterplan document. 
 
Copies of the Draft Masterplan for Grantham town centre have been circulated 
on CD for Panel members and Grantham members only. 

  

 

 

 

 

WORKING STYLE OF SCRUTINY 

 

The Role Of Scrutiny 

• To provide a “critical friend” challenge to the Executive as well as external authorities 

and agencies 

• To reflect the voice and concerns of the public and its communities 

• Scrutiny Members should take the lead and own the Scrutiny Process on behalf of the 

public 

• Scrutiny should make an impact on the delivery of public services 

 

Remember… 

• Scrutiny should be member led 

• Any conclusions must be backed up by evidence 

• Meetings should adopt an inquisitorial rather than adversarial style of traditional local 

government committees 

 



1

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

GILLESPIES
Knight Frank LLP

MVA Ltd
GENECON

South Kesteven District Council 

East Midlands Development Agency

GRANTHAM PHASE TWO 

MASTERPLAN 

DRAFT FINAL REPORT

July 2006

Agenda Item 5 



Final report
2

Grantham MASTERPLAN

contents

 



Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report
3

PART 1 : INTRODUCTION

1.1 Aim of the report

PART 2 : BASELINE SUMMARYSUMMARY

2.1 Key urban design issues

2.2 Economic context

2.3 Market and Development 

2.4 Planning

2.5 Transport and Access

PART 3 : ESTABLISHING THE VISION

3.1 The Vision

3.2 The Vision Objectives

   3.2.1 Building on a connected Grantham

   3.2.2 Providing an exemplary public realm

   3.2.3 Creating a sustainable transport approach

   3.2.4 Consolidating, improving and diversifying the town   

               centre offer

   3.2.5  Presenting a town of different parts

   3.2.6  Providing a clear delivery strategy

PART 4 : DELIVERING THE VISION : THE PROJECTS

4.1 The Strategic Framework

4.2 Redefining the centre

4.3 Creating character areas

4.4 Creating clear connectionsCreating clear connections

4.5 Accessing the centreAccessing the centre

4.6 Developing a spatial network

4.7 Creating a sustainable business environment

4.8 Extending and enhancing the role of the Isaac Newton Centre

4.9 Enhancing Grantham as a destination

4.10 Reinforcing civic service delivery

4.11 Encouraging urban living

4.12 Creating distinctive gateways and arrival points

4.13 Enhancing key vistas, buildings and frontages

PART 5 : ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

PART 6 : CONSULTATION

Appendix A : Commentary on Indicative Appraisals and Market

 



Final report
4

Grantham MASTERPLAN

1introduction

 



5

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Gillespies LLP supported by Genecon, KnightFrank and MVA have been commis-

sioned by South Kesteven District Council to undertake Phase 2 of the Masterplan for 

Grantham town centre with the following aims:

To review the initial masterplan completed in 2002 and develop a visionary / stra-

tegic document with a prioritised, deliverable action plan with key performance 

indicators and measurable outcomes.

To create a comprehensive list of actions to achieve the desired outcomes eg con-

straints, action required, timescale in months and years, probable funding sources, 

and approximate project costs.

To realise the sub-regional centre potential of the town of Grantham.

To prepare detailed assessments of potential core development sites within the 

town for commercial and mixed retail use which will guide the development of 

Grantham for the next 10 years.

To provide information on likely achievable rentals for commercial and mixed 

retail uses.

To align strategic vision and strategies with the LDF and Local Transport Plan and 

other regional strategies.

To inform the emerging local development framework in terms of providing a 

broad strategy for the development of the town as a sub-regional centre.

Key Outputs

To complete a Grantham Masterplan:- including the process described in the CABE 

document “Creating Successful Masterplans” and the three municipal outputs as 

recognised in that document which are:

- Strategic Framework

- Spatial Masterplan

- Implementation Plan

To provide a detailed, prioritised Action Plan for delivery during 2006-2015 

that will form the basis of an AAP for inclusion in the LDF.

This report sets out the key issues affecting Grantham along

with a Vision for its future physical an
d economic prosperity.  A strategic fram

ework 

is also established containing a series of action plans to ensure the Vision is effectively delivered 

1.0Introduction1.0 Introduction

1

 



Final report
6

Grantham MASTERPLAN

a
 n

ew
 t

o
w

n
 s

q
u

a
re

 



7

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

1.1  Aim of the report

In line with the key outputs identified previously this report constitutes the final 

report comprising all three elements needed in producing a successful master-

plan for Grantham.  The report is structured as follows:

PART 1 : Introduction

PART 2 : A summary of the Baseline Review completed previously identifying the 

key issues in terms of:

an urban design audit and historical review

the business case through economic, market and planning analysis

a transport and access perspective

PART 3 : Establishing a vision for Grantham which sets out clearly:

the kind of place Grantham needs to become to fulfill its sub regional role

what level and type of change is needed 

objectives for the town physically, economically and socially 

PART 4 : Putting forward a strategic framework and associated projects that aim 

to deliver the Vision based on high quality design, economic vitality and sustain-

able movement. Each strategy has an overall objective within which a number of 

projects have been defined. The projects are underpinned by a clear action plan 

with information on rationale, policy statement, critical delivery paths, timescale 

and prioritisation .

PART 5 :  An illustrative masterplan is identified demonstrating one possible spa-

tial illustration of how Grantham could look if the projects are delivered and the 

Vision achieved.

PART 6 :  This identifies the stakeholders and key interest groups that have been 

consulted in producing the Phase 2 masterplan .

 



Final report
8

Grantham MASTERPLAN

2baseline summary

 



9

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Baseline Review and Analysis stage of the study revealed a series of key issues 

affecting Grantham in terms of:

Urban Design and Historical Development

Economic context

Market and Development 

Planning

Transport and access 

The following section sets out the key issues providing a reminder of current con-

straints within the town but also how the Vision has been developed in aiming to 

respond to these issues and create a future for Grantham that means meeting its 

sub-regional potential.

The importance of the link between the key issues and the subsequent solutions are 

an integral part of creating a robust case for the redevelopment and regeneration of 

Grantham town centre and the wider area of influence. 

the principles for development and provide the basis for the 

2.0Baseline Summary

part of Stage 1 of the study

in the  

the Baseline Review and Analysis report 
conducted as

2.0 baseline summary

2

 



Final report
10

Grantham MASTERPLAN

2.1  Key Urban Design Issues

1 Aligning with the historic themes of Grantham

There are a number of important historic themes that have influenced Grantham’s  

growth and been noticeable assets in its past development. 

Learning and education - Grantham is a place that has a strong history of education and 

learning illustrated by Kings School dating back to the 14th Century.  The significance 

of this place is that Sir Isaac Newton was educated there and the focus on high quality 

education is still prevalent today.

Hospitality and connectivity - The Great North Road diverted in the 12th Century came 

through Grantham and Newark.  This resulted in many travellers coming into the town 

having left the Roman Ermine Street at or near Colsterworth about eight miles outside 

the town.  This meant that important cities such as Lincoln and York were no longer on 

the main road between the capitals of England and Scotland.  This important diversion 

put Grantham firmly on the road map of England.

Trade and retailing - Clearly Grantham has always had a role as a trading centre because 

of its connectivity within the national route network and position relative to other loca-

tions.  High Street, in particular, has been defined by the appearance of traders and retailers 

through the centuries perhaps more prevalently in the 20th century serving a catchment 

area around the town.

Principles of good urban design - Grantham has many of the attributes that define good 

urban design supported by an historic form that remains largely intact albeit with a 

number of exceptions. The important spaces within the town are linked by a series of 

well defined streets many of which are animated by entrances and views demonstrat-

ing best practice in the application of good urban design

2 Poor arrival points and gateways

The rail station – this is an important part of the past and future of Grantham.  De-

spite being functional, the station lacks visual impact or the necessary connections 

or enticements for people to access the town centre. The bus station – this is a visu-

ally and physically unattractive arrival point for people coming into the town centre 

including the journey along Wharf Road which is beset by the blank walls of the 

MSCP. People are additionally disoriented by the lack of signage. 

 



11

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The main vehicular gateways to the town centre are at the convergence of Wharf 

Road, Sankt Augustine Way and Westgate via the railway bridge.  In addition, fur-

ther gateways occur where Barrowby Road meets North Street adjacent to ASDA, 

the northern end of Watergate, north of Wyndham Park and to the south at the 

junction of London Road and Wharf Road.

Each of these gateways is dominated by traffic or road related activities including 

the large car park at ASDA which represents a poor initial impression of the town 

and the character and interest it has to offer. 

3 Coarse grain of existing development 

A much coarser grain of development is evident east and west of Westgate where 

more recent interventions have meant a loss of the original street pattern and a 

more monolithic approach, a good example of this is the Sir Isaac Newton Shop-

ping Centre.  This has restricted the choice of routes through these areas to other 

routes making the town centre less easy to travel through and around. 

4 Poor connectivity between key locations

There are a number of key locations within the town some of which are well served 

by the north to south orientation by way of High Street and Westgate, in particular. 

Although these routes, along with a number of more peripheral routes such as 

Wharf Road, do present a barrier effect to pedestrians crossing to key activity zones. 

However, there are in addition poor east to west linkages connecting the River and 

Wyndham Park to the west of the town. There are also poor connections from the 

rail station to the town which is a critical link in drawing more people into the town 

centre.  

5 Clear character areas but often dominated by single use

Retail uses dominate the core of the town which means it is relatively inactive 

after 5.30pm with little to draw people back into the centre or keep them there 

following the closure of the main shops.

The east of the centre, including Castlegate and Swinegate, have a subtle mix 

of uses including mainly residential, some office development and recreation 

through pubs and private clubs.  These uses and the nature of the built environ-

ment means this area is markedly different from the more commercial character 

of the core.  It has all the qualities of a village set within an urban context includ-

ing a sense of community despite the close association it has with the centre of 

the town

 



Final report
12

Grantham MASTERPLAN

6 Poor frontages and enclosure

The retention of many of the older building forms and plots have helped in main-

taining frontages onto the street even as they have changed use.  The modern 

interventions along Wharf Road and a number of the minor streets within the core, 

however, have produced a poor visual and pedestrian experience.  The back of the 

Sir Isaac Newton Shopping Centre and the MSCP have created a series of blank walls 

along the southern edge of the town centre making it an insecure and unattractive 

route detracting from the quality of the town centre beyond.  There are numerous 

other smaller examples within the town centre where blank walls are positioned 

adjacent to public routes and access ways.

7 Over dominance of traffic

High Street and Westgate, in particular, are dominated by traffic and the poor envi-

ronmental conditions associated with it.  Pavements are often inadequate with road 

space given importance over the pedestrian experience.

Market Place and St Peters Hill are the only real spaces within the town centre that 

provide the opportunity for people to rest, congregate and people watch.  These 

spaces, however, are equally dominated by traffic.  Market Place currently functions 

as a car park which detracts from the quality of the space and obscures the splen-

dour of the surrounding facades.

In addition, there is a clear lack of those elements that constitute a successful public 

realm that people want to use.  These are notably clear and frequent signage, cre-

ative public art and lighting and useable street furniture.  Many of these elements 

are missing in Grantham or misrepresented by location and quality.  Some public 

art does exist through statues – of Sir Isaac Newton in particular and arguably the 

Market Cross which pay service to the history of the town.

2.2  economic context

1 Economic decline at County level

Lincolnshire Enterprise has undertaken a recent review of the County economy 

where skills are considered relatively poor, with about one third of working adults 

either unqualified or with qualifications below level 2. This picture of severe com-

petitiveness constraints in the County are not necessarily reflective, however, of 

Grantham and South Kesteven’s position with the District experiencing high levels 

 



13

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

of population growth between 1991-2001, up 14%, well ahead of County and 

national rates. However, this is not to suggest that Grantham and its district is not 

without economic issues, but it is clear the town has the potential to be a strong 

economic driver for the County and indeed the region

2 Unfulfilling sub-regional role with clear constraints

Grantham’s core shopping catchment is limited to a 10 mile radius around the 

town.  This is inconsistent with a town required to play a sub-regional role.  The 

relatively poor offer in comparison shopping terms is a critical barrier to extend-

ing this catchment and thus securing sub-regional influence. To extend its reach, 

it is the quality and not necessarily the quantity of comparison provision that 

needs to be enhanced.  That said, the lack of a quality department store is a key 

gap in the town’s potential to deliver a genuine sub-regional offer.

The lack of a night time economy is significant for a sub-regional centre.  

Grantham needs to develop this offer to re-position itself as an appealing centre 

for knowledge workers, potentially relocating from London.

Recent office developments have been dispersed, including the Springfield devel-

opment.  This has taken economic opportunity away from the town centre.  Given 

the town’s strategic accessibility it is all too easy for the potential spending power 

of office workers to be lost given the lack of a modern office market offer in or on 

the edge of the town centre.  

2.3  Market and development

The purpose of the baseline market analysis was to provide an overview of the 

market associated with retail, leisure, residential and office uses and provide an 

indication of current market demand and interest. The results clearly showed:

1 Shortage of high quality town centre development opportunities

The Baseline analysis shows a lack of modern office accommodation to meet 

demand and a lack of higher quality retailers or opportunities for this type of 

occupier. Associated with this was a demonstrated lack of a quality and properly 

located leisure offer to improve the evening economy of Grantham. This included 

a quality focus for this type of use around which more intensive activity would 

take place. 

 



Final report
14

Grantham MASTERPLAN

2 Bouyant residential market

The agents report that traditional housing stock is selling well, however the apartment 

market needs to be established.  The first time buyers and investment markets show 

potential for growth especially if the town centre could be made more attractive to visi-

tors and shoppers.

It is considered that there is also potential for growth in the commuter market espe-

cially as Nottingham’s City Living market is experiencing affordability issues.

3 A number of development sites identified

The Baseline Review, as well as considering the analysis of development markets, also 

considered a review of the relative strengths and weaknesses of the sites identified 

across the town centre within the masterplan produced by DTZ in 2002. The key issues 

were that the sites were fragmented both locationally and across ownerships with many  

owned by multiple landowners. 

However, a small number of the sites, including the former Kwik Save site and the 

Eastgate car park, were in Council ownership which could suggest a way forward in 

bringing development ahead early.  A number of additional sites were also identi-

fied which offered the potential for significant change, notably the current Post Of-

fice Sorting office, land around Greyfriars at the back of Westgate and the area north 

of the railway station adjacent to Wharf Road.

4 Little progress since the 2002 DTZ masterplan on development sites

Apart from the former Cattle Market site, a further key issue was the lack of change 

and progress since the original masterplan and the inherent danger of an impatient 

property market developing key sites in isolation without a masterplan offering 

planning certainty and co-ordination in delivery.

 



15

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

2.4  planning

1 Grantham identified as a Sub-Regional Centre in the regional hierarchy

Grantham is identified as a sub-regional centre in both the Regional Spatial Strategy 

and the Lincolnshire Structure Plan. The development of Grantham is intended to 

support the Principal Urban Area of Lincoln at a regional level and to complement the 

development and role of other sub-regional centres, particularly Newark and Boston, 

at a sub-regional level.

2 Housing and employment land supply

As priorities the Regional Spatial Strategy and Regional Economic Strategy indicate 

that the future development of Grantham Town Centre should address identified 

shortages of housing and employment land to meet both demand and sub regional 

aspirations, particularly office provision and provide a clear and cohesive town centre 

by restricting out-of-centre retail and leisure developments. It is also suggested that 

detailed consideration is given to the provision of a new and/or improved transport 

interchange and improving the public transport offer. There is also a shortfall of 

housing provision to accommodate expected demand.

At the sub-regional level planning policies indicate that the future development of 

Grantham Town Centre needs to improve the mix of retail provision and the general 

environment, including streetscene and public realm, reduce traffic and identify suit-

able office based employment sites 

3 Location of recent planning permissions

A review of the major planning permissions granted over the last 5 years indicates 

that, contrary to regional and sub-regional policies, there have been significant 

out-of-centre retail development approvals granted in Grantham to provide for 

some of this identified floorspace. These out-of centre approvals have resulted 

in, and will further affect, the vitality and viability of the existing Grantham Town 

Centre through the provision of out-of-centre shopping destinations and a reduc-

tion in pedestrian footfall in the town centre.

 



Final report
16

Grantham MASTERPLAN

2.5  transport and access 

1 Policy imperative to improve congestion within Grantham

In Grantham the 2001-2006 LTP included £1.5 million of transport improvements for 

the Grantham area, the key schemes were as follows, the new LTP is being formulated 

over the next few months;

provision of two one-way gyratory systems on the Inner Relief Road to improve 

capacity and relieve congestion (both implemented);

  removal of the Westgate / Wharf Road / Sankt Augustin Way roundabout, replacing 

it with a signal controlled junction (being implemented by Cattle Market Developer);

pedestrianisation of the Market Place

2 Heavy congestion at peak hours in particular

Routes within the town centre can become severely congested during the peak periods 

especially the routes that form the Inner Relief Road. This congestion results from both 

through traffic flows on the A52 and A607 and traffic accessing the town centre car 

parks and the rail station.

3 Poor signage to car parks and destinations

The signage of car parks and destinations within the town centre and the routes out 

of the town centre are generally poor and requires a significant knowledge of the 

network and the locations of local facilities to find the most appropriate route to the 

final destination.

4 Poor quality bus station

The main hub for bus based public transport is the bus station which is located on 

Wharf Road at the Sir Isaac Newton Centre. This facility is the main passenger board-

ing and alighting area within the town centre, however, it is of generally poor quality 

and is unappealing for passengers. Access to the facility for buses is also poor as the 

layout results in a number of manoeuvres being required which increases journey 

times due to the inefficient layout.

 



17

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

5 Poor bus services

Bus services that access the town are experiencing a decline in usage which has 

resulted in problems with operators on these routes.  No buses access the train 

station at present; this is likely to be due to the significant diversion that is required 

for buses to obtain access to the facility which would have a significant impact on 

journey times. Barring two services on the Lincolnshire InterConnect 1 service to 

Lincoln, there are no evening services within the town, severely diminishing the 

accessibility of the town centre during this time period and consequently the 

attractiveness of Grantham’s evening entertainment offer.

6 Poor pedestrian and cycle access and experience

Pedestrian routes within the town centre mainly utilise footways adjacent to 

trafficked routes with few pedestrian only routes provided. In addition, pedestrian 

routes linking the various parts of the town including the rail station are generally 

indirect and can result in a requirement to cross relatively busy roads and therefore 

can act as barriers to pedestrian movements around the town.  

7 Adequate car parking

There are five full time public parking areas within Grantham Town Centre which 

are spread throughout the town and are easily accessible to the main town centre 

retail areas along the High Street. In addition, there is a large car park of around 

500 spaces associated with the Asda supermarket located in the North West 

corner of the town centre. Information from the ticket machines indicates that 

there is spare parking capacity within the town during the week; however, de-

mand exceeds supply on Saturdays when the majority of the parking areas are full 

between 11am and 5 pm.

8 Identification of east-west by-pass in Lincolnshire LTP 2001-6

An east-west bypass of Grantham has been included in the 2001-2006 Lincolnshire 

LTP; however, it has not received government funding as it had a poor economic 

performance relative to other schemes in the UK. The scheme is likely to result in the 

removal of the A52 through traffic from the town centre providing significant relief to 

the congested town centre road system including the effect of HGV’s. 

 



Final report
18

Grantham MASTERPLAN

3establishing the visionthe vision 3

 



19

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

3

Grantham clearly needs to fulfill the potential it has as a sub regional centre and 

develop an offer that is unique and distinctive yet complimentary to the other 

identified sub-regional centres of Melton Mowbray, Newark and Boston. Part of 

that unique offer is providing people with different experiences and destinations 

within the town centre, over longer periods of the day connected by clear, high 

quality and obvious linkages. This means extensions to cultural, retail and lei-

sure opportunities in the town centre, enjoying the entertainment offer, walking 

around the quieter more historic parts of the town and experiencing the riverside 

and Park. These are all parts of an existing and future Grantham that taken collec-

tively have the potential to provide the foundation for the fulfillment of its sub-

regional role.     

The Baseline report identified the relatively constrained catchment area Grantham 

has and the need to expand this area if the town is to perform a much stronger 

role as a sub-regional centre, supporting Lincoln and the major cities of Notting-

ham and Leicester.  However, the town needs to develop in such a way that it does 

not necessarily compete with the other sub-regional centres but compliments 

them in providing a different offer to that of Newark, Boston and Melton. The 

new offer is part of a visioning approach that will create a new appeal to visitors 

and existing residents in creating a place of reinvigorated civic pride, high quality 

development and visual delight. 

The clear difference between this study compared to the 2002 study, driven bydriven by 

CABE guidance in their document Creating Successful Masterplans CABE 2004, is is 

the necessity to provide an overall Vision for the town setting out quite clearly: 

•  the kind of place Grantham needs to become in order to flourish in the role it  

has as a sub-regional centre 

• identify the level and type of change needed and 

• provide clear objectives for the town physically, economically and socially

3.0 Establishing the Vision

This section aims to establish the Vision for Grantham

providing 6 clear objectives in response
 to the issues 

3.0 establishing the vision

3

 



Final report
20

Grantham MASTERPLAN

a lively market place

 



21

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

3.1  The Vision

The Vision for Grantham is that of a bustling and vital sub-regional centre which 

capitalises upon its singular town character and provides a distinctive and compli-

mentary retail, visitor, and living and working environment. 

In 2020, the lively centre of Grantham will provide an attractive traffic calmed 

environment which allows the enjoyment of its historic spaces, buildings and 

streets. Varied shopping opportunities will be on offer associated with larger 

stores including a new department store and a range of smaller independently 

owned specialist shops which offer distinctive products and produce associated 

with the area.

New retail stores meeting contemporary development needs will operate from re-

generated sites and be associated with mixed uses which will in particular include 

opportunities for living in the town centre.

New employment will be focussed on knowledge based and emerging service 

industries reversing the trends to out-commuting and providing employment 

within walking distance of the centre. All development will be sustainably devel-

oped about an interpreted transport initiative which links development through 

an enhanced public transport system and fundamentally makes the centre attrac-

tive to pedestrians and cyclists.

Grantham will have a much enhanced appeal to visitors encouraging an ex-

tended stay and based upon the enhanced and better interpreted  town heritage, 

enhanced role for the town park and riverside setting and the story of notable 

personalities including Sir Isaac Newton and Margaret Thatcher.

 



Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



23

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

If the Vision is to be achieved the level and type of change needed is notable with the 

opportunity for significant town centre interventions, a greater mix of experiences 

and uses and utilising the connections Grantham has physically and economically 

across the region and even nationally. 

A clear set of themes and objectives are needed that draw on the uniqueness of 

Grantham, how it can fulfil the ambition it has and how it can create a distinctive 

experience for people that sets it apart from the other sub-regional centres yet 

forms a collective offer for the whole region.

3.2  The Vision Objectives

The following 6 Key objectives contribute to the Vision for Grantham that we 

believe will deliver the distinctive offer it needs in fulfilling the role of a 

sub-regional centre. We have expressed the Vision objectives through a set of 

diagrams but also identified potential comparator towns and places that set 

benchmarks in creating successful environments through high quality design and 

clear channels of delivery.

Benchmarking is an integral part of understanding where a town wants to be and 

can help the process of consultation in conveying the success of other places and 

showing people the kind of environment that can be achieved through a collec-

tive and co-ordinated approach. 

 



Grantham MASTERPLAN

3.2.1  Building on a connected Grantham  

Through the Baseline Review and Analysis it is clear that a unique selling 

point of Grantham is the level of connectivity and linkage it has across a 

spectrum of different sectors. A central part of understanding the type of 

place Grantham wants to become is building on this asset so that there is an 

overriding objective of creating a connected Grantham in terms of:

Economic Development – this means enhancing linkages to existing and 

potential new markets such as retail, leisure, residential and office develop-

ment, raising the appeal of Grantham to the development industry as a 

place worth investing in, in order to bring about added value and significant 

financial return. 

Grantham also needs to enhance the connections it has to regional delivery 

agencies tapping into potential sources of funding and investment that will 

underpin the process of regeneration further. The poor level of skills across 

the County, in particular, with around one third of working adults either 

unqualified or with qualifications below level 2, also means creating better 

connections to learning opportunities and education through universities, 

colleges and wider government schemes.

Physically – Grantham is a place well connected through the rail system to 

London and to markets north and south. Access to the three cities – Not-

tingham, Leicester and Derby, is also good as are linkages to the east coast 

ports and nationally important tourism assets such as Stamford, Lincoln and 

international airports at East Midlands Robin Hood and Doncaster. 

Within the town itself, the traffic dominated physical connections between 

activity areas are relatively weak and poor quality, even though there is a 

grid of existing streets and connections. However, part of the Vision is to 

enhance these connections and add to the frequency so that all parts of the 

town – including the railway, the Park, the river and different character areas 

are all part of an easily understandable town experience that gives people 

choice and quality in the journeys they make.  

Socially – discussions with stakeholders has revealed the quantity of events 

that occur in Grantham such as the Fair, the many markets, the emerging 

Grantham Cup and how much there is an opportunity to market these in a 

o
bj

ec
ti

v
e 

o
n

e

Vision

 



25

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

much pro-active way in order to appeal to a wider audience. Grantham is a 

place of unique history defined by unique characters yet the celebration of 

these seems to be relatively low key. 

In terms of the availability of places in which active and safe social interac-

tion can take place these are relatively minimal or dominated by traffic. The 

Market Place, St Peters Hill and Wyndham Park have a key role to play in 

creating new spaces where people can go to watch and entertain, develop-

ing the basis of a ‘social’ grid. There is a clear objective in encouraging visi-

tors and residents to use the town for longer periods during the evening, in 

particular. High quality connections between these areas and high levels of 

natural surveillance, however, are vital to creating a vibrant and safe social 

offer.

3.2.2 Providing an exemplary public realm 

The public realm, which includes streets, lanes, squares and park areas, 

provides the setting for the town and the buildings that comprise it. Devel-

oping high quality links across and through the town focussed on streets 

and spaces such as Westgate, High Street, Wyndham Park and Market Place 

are essential in improving the attraction of the town centre for people and 

developers. A central part of the Vision is to provide an exemplary public 

realm comprised of high quality materials, lighting, street furniture and 

public art. The emerging Public Art strategy for Grantham shoul seek to 

compliment this further.

Objective One was about creating high quality links and connections in 

particular to public transport stops and different parts of the town. Bet-

ter links to the Park and River Witham should also be part of this and the 

importance of developing a stronger east-west grid. Wyndham Park, the 

College and the River corridor are important elements of the town that 

need to be better integrated with the town. Wyndham Park is an area of 

great potential and improvement that should be seen as an integral part 

of the Vision. This should feature highly as an area of added activity, envi-

ronmental attractiveness and visual delight for Grantham and feature more 

strongly as part of the visitor experience.

o
bj

ec
ti

v
e 

tw
o

Vision

 



Grantham MASTERPLAN

3.2..3 Creating a sustainable transport approach

In conjunction with the importance of a high quality public realm a 

sustainable approach to transport is a key theme upon which the Vision 

is based. Lessening the impact of the car and improving the pedestrian 

experience are two elements that underpin this approach. Primarily, this 

concerns better traffic management and congestion relief with clearer 

highways and vehicle circulation by way of concentrating traffic flows on the 

main road network around the town and minimising the need to travel by 

car across the town centre grid.

In aiming to lessen the impact of the car, a much more efficient public 

transport system is required and greater incentive to use it. This means 

encouraging greater use of buses to access the town centre, improved bus 

and passenger facilities, improved bus movements and priority and far 

better integration between bus and rail services. As part of an integrated 

public transport system the role of the rail station is also very significant.

This means encouraging greater use of the railway to access the town 

centre, improved pedestrian connections between the rail station and the 

town centre, a high quality station gateway, encouragement of existing 

commuters to utilise the town centre facilities and make better usage of the 

car parking areas for weekend town centre parking. 

One of the most important elements of a sustainable approach to transport, 

however, are more attractive and direct pedestrian routes as part of 

a walkable town centre. This new focus on the pedestrian experience 

includes improved links between the town centre and edge of centre 

areas, pedestrian priority areas within the town centre core, improved 

links between various destinations utilising the town grid and the 

encouragement of cycle routes through the town centre.

An additional objective of the Vision, is better access to the town centre 

through greater use of alternative modes of transport and the link this has 

to parking. Concentrating town centre parking around the periphery of the 

town centre, reducing the need for vehicles to enter it, and rationalising 

much of the on-street parking further adds to the concept of a sustainable 

transport approach and a much more pedestrian oriented grid of streets

o
bj

ec
ti

v
e 

th
re

e

Vision

 



27

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

3.2.4 Consolidating, improving and diversifying the town 

centre offer

Improving the town centre to appeal to a wide range of users is a critical part 

of developing Grantham as a high quality sub-regional centre.   A key element 

of the Vision is to support the objective of consolidation, improvement and 

diversification of the town centre with a mixed development offer within a 

walkable area so that people are able to work, live and spend their leisure time 

within close proximity. This has positive implications for the local economy, 

improving safety and being part of a sustainable approach.  

The objective is to provide a greater mix and quality of uses that includes:

Higher quality retail

With the aim of adding to the blend of specialist/independent outlets as well 

as encouraging the larger retail formats with the right requirements to fit their 

needs, taking account of the historic fabric of the town. 

Leisure 

People spending more of their leisure time within Grantham is also central to 

the Vision providing strength to an evening economy that is given the right 

components to flourish. This means encouraging developments that gener-

ate high levels of vitality and activity around a focus or series of linked focal 

spaces. Having these type of uses within the town centre is essential if it is to 

thrive as a quality environment that people use and feel safe in, interacting 

with other people and experiences. 

Residential: town centre living and commuters

Creating 24 hour towns and cities is a key theme within the new urban agenda 

where places are vibrant and active for longer periods. The Vision aims to 

reflect this by encouraging more people to live in the town centre to capitalise 

on the opportunities this brings for walking to work, to leisure opportuni-

ties and contribute to a more sustainable transport approach. Encouraging 

people to live and spend more of their leisure time in Grantham and commute 

to neighbouring cities is also an acceptable part of a new role for the town 

provided the quality of development and public realm creates a new address 

for contemporary town centre living

o
bj

ec
ti

v
e 

fo
u

r

Vision

 



Final report
28

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Vision

High Quality modern and flexible office space

The Baseline Review and Analysis demonstrated the office market is 

currently poor within the town centre with very few instances of mod-

ern flexible workspace. This is an essential element of a successful 21st 

century town centre, particularly Grantham that has a well connected 

transport system, which many businesses would find attractive. A 

central part of the Vision is to create a quality office development that 

capitalises on this high level of connectivity but that could also offer 

important learning and skills improvement opportunities. 

Learning, knowledge and cultural industries

Creating opportunities for developing new skills, knowledge based 

businesses and the cultural industries are the final key elements in 

developing an improved and diversified town centre offer consolidated 

within a walkable zone. 

3.2.5 Creating a town of different parts

Consolidating the town centre is a key objective of the Vision. However, 

in order to be a place of quality and added vitality the town centre 

should be connected to other parts of the town in order that people 

spend longer in Grantham as part of a more comprehensive experi-

ence. 

Opportunities exist to enhance the natural parts of the town as a con-

trasting experience to the urbanity of the commercial centre including 

the Park as a place people can enjoy and feel safe in. This may mean 

more activities, attractions and general enhancement in order that 

 



29

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

the Park is a focus of recreation for Grantham offering a very different 

experience to the town centre. The Park is a place of natural refuge and 

appreciation of the environment including the River Witham that runs 

through it. The River is a key natural asset that could be further im-

proved so that it plays a key role within the attractiveness of the town 

particularly with regard to ecology and sustainability

St Wulframs Church is a significant attraction in the town and is situated 

in an historic part of Grantham surrounded by medieval streets and 

places of historic interest such as Grantham House and Kings School. 

There is an opportunity to experience the historic tranquility and ar-

chitectural heritage within this area which also provides a different feel 

compared to the commercial parts of Grantham and those places of 

environmental and ecological quality. 

This Vision objective is significant if the dwell time within the centre 

of Grantham is to increase with people linking activities through the 

course of the day. Further afield than the centre this may also include 

Belton House to the north and the Canal Basin to the southwest. The 

Canal Basin, in particular, offers an addition to the attractions of the 

town centre by providing an environmental asset through the introduc-

tion of water as well as a new activity focus. 

3.2.6 Providing a clear delivery strategy

The future economic success of Grantham will depend on the ability of 

the town to meet its aspirations and potential as a sub-regional centre 

in the East Midlands. The delivery of an improved town centre offer, 

with a step-change in the quality and range of facilities and assets is 

critical to realising the town’s economic potential. There is no short-

term ‘fix’ and the approach to delivery must combine early project 

development actions with long term strategic planning.

Robust policy as a delivery tool

The emphasis in the delivery strategy in achieving the Vision and the 

wider masterplan of which it is a part must be on the application of im-

proved / more robust policy mechanisms to re-enforce the primacy of 

the town centre as the location for key economic activities – retail, com-

mercial leisure, knowledge-based business, civic service delivery etc.. 

This provides the foundation on which project delivery activity can be 

built. Without a clear policy framework, the ability of the public sector to 

influence, either directly or indirectly, the scale, nature and location of 

private sector investment will be limited. It is the policy framework that 

gives legitimacy to both decisions and actions by the public sector to 

support delivery. 

Critically, the public sector needs to build confidence in the ‘investabil-

ity’ of Grantham and to show a genuine commitment to facilitating pri-

vate sector investment activity across a broad front in the town centre. 

This requires effective co-ordination of masterplan delivery activity to:

demonstrate delivery capability in the town centre – short term ac-

tions by the public sector to act as a catalyst to long term investment 

prospects for the town are critical;

maintain the momentum on current projects which are consistent 

with the masterplan objectives – the delivery process is already un-

derway through existing projects.  These need to be delivered to the 

highest possible standards to act as ‘signals of change’ in Grantham’s 

prospects;

lever increased private sector investment into the town centre and 

thus create confidence for future private investors.

Reducing investment risks

Ultimately the aim of the masterplan, which incorporates the Vision, 

must be to set a framework for increasing the scale, rate and, perhaps 

most importantly, the quality of private investment in Grantham town 

centre. 

This requires a delivery framework that:

gives clarity to investors on the spatial/policy emphasis for different 

uses in different sub-areas of the town centre;

offers a degree of certainty regarding key public realm investments;

reduces investment risk by minimising competitive threats, particu-

larly from proposals outside of the town centre;

demonstrates effective and competent co-ordination of public sector 

enabling activity.

Developers and investors value policy certainty and credible public sec-

tor interface as much as direct financial support. 

 



Final report
30

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Narrowing the focus for delivery – ‘Doing a few things really well’

There is a long list of potential projects that could create change and impact 

in Grantham town centre. But a myriad of initiatives, which dilute discern-

able impact, should be avoided. The delivery of the masterplan should focus 

on a clear set of priorities, some of which will take time to deliver, but none-

theless should be identified as the ‘cornerstones’ of the masterplan. Success-

ful strategy delivery requires focus on a narrow range of key projects with 

best prospects for sustainable impacts and which can be delivered to the 

highest quality thresholds. ‘Doing a few things really well’ must be the start-

ing point to transformational change in the role and profile of Grantham.

Governance and urban management

The delivery complexity of the key development projects in the masterplan 

points to the need for a focused and properly co-ordinated delivery effort 

– a multiplicity of stakeholders are involved  (landowners, occupiers, devel-

opers, funders), a diverse set of policies will require review /alignment and 

the enthusiasm of the town centre community needs to be harnessed.

‘Delivery’ in the context of the long-term ambition for Grantham is not a 

matter of chasing money. The level of change envisaged in terms of pub-

lic realm and new development clearly comes with a major cost to public 

and private sectors – but putting a ‘price-tag’ on a vision runs the risk of 

diminishing its value. Moving forward with fundamental change in the form 

proposed requires a delivery approach based on ‘strategic management’ not 

just ‘project management’. The delivery of the masterplan therefore requires 

an enhanced form of ‘delivery management’ – one that:

places the vision and masterplan at the heart of local economic, planning, 

transport and all aspects of public policy making that can support the 

delivery process;

is driven by a strong political will and leadership;

embraces the widest set of stakeholders within and beyond the town;

gives the highest level of confidence to the private sector and reduces, or 

at least is perceived to reduce investment risks;

is led by strategic planning not opportunism.

This does not necessarily imply new delivery mechanisms – Grantham 

has established governance structures through which effective delivery 

management could be achieved.  Grantham Futures, through an effec-

tive partnership with the District Council, provides an organisational basis 

through which strategy management and delivery activity could be channelled. 

Nevertheless, to take forward the masterplan, the role of Grantham Futures, its 

relationship to the District Council and its ability to act as a focus for delivery co-

ordination will require review.

Key components of a delivery strategy

The key components of the delivery strategy are as follows:

a) achieving status for the Vision and masterplan;

b) championing and marketing the masterplan principles and key development 

opportunities;

c) co-ordinating delivery activity.

a) Achieving status for the Vision and masterplan

The masterplan needs to become an embedded feature of local and sub-re-

gional planning and economic development policy. Indeed, ‘policy alignment’ 

will be the primary delivery tool at the outset – coherent alignment between the 

masterplan proposals and the Local Development Framework is a pre-requisite 

for masterplan delivery, including public sector intervention. 

Three stages are envisaged for achieving policy status for the masterplan:

Stage 1 - securing stakeholder support to the principles of the master-

plan.

Stage 2 - achieving materiality and, in time, primacy in decision-making.

Stage 3 - aligning key policy tools at local, sub-regional and regional level 

to create a supportive context to masterplan delivery.

Stakeholder support

The masterplan has been developed through a consultative process. To this 

extent there is an understanding of its rationale and objectives, certainly within 

the project partners. Critically, this level of understanding and in principle sup-

port needs to extend beyond the project partners and to include funding agen-

cies including Lincolnshire Enterprise and EMDA. The masterplan has sought to 

reflect sub-regional and regional economic / spatial policy objectives and to this 

extent the strategy and proposals are effectively aligned. Following endorse-

ment by Grantham Futures and SKDC, the case for investment prioritisation of 

projects in Grantham will need to be presented to key agencies in order to se-

cure at least in principle support for the key project proposals.  Specific funding 

bids will need to worked up at the appropriate time as projects move forward. 

 



31

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

In practical terms, it is essential, therefore, that the masterplan be-

comes the subject of an extended engagement process that leads to 

widespread understanding of its rationale, implications and potential 

benefits at local, sub-regional and regional level. Making the regional 

case is critical if RDA funding is to be sought.  As a key component of the 

East Midlands economy, the competitiveness of Grantham town centre 

must be positioned as a regional as well as sub-regional delivery cause, 

aligned to Regional Economic and Regional Spatial Strategy objectives if 

EMDA support is to be secured.  

Achieving materiality in decision-making

Long-term plans require more than present day political support. De-

livery of the masterplan relies fundamentally on a long-term commit-

ment from the District Council to its principles. This may require difficult 

decisions to be made – delivery can be as much about proposals that 

are resisted as well as those that are delivered. The masterplan needs to 

become a material consideration in decision-making, particularly plan-

ning decisions, through formal adoption by the Council, first as Supple-

mentary Planning Guidance and ultimately through incorporation into 

the Local Development Framework. This ‘materiality’ provides a degree 

of certainty to other stakeholders and confidence to the private sec-

tor about the status of the masterplan. It should ensure that short-term 

variations in political complexion do not unnecessarily undermine long-

term strategy delivery.

Aligning key policy tools

In devising the masterplan, full consideration has been given to the wide 

range of existing policy mechanisms operating to greater or lesser influ-

ence in Grantham town centre. The strategy aligns with existing devel-

opment planning principles and sustainability objectives expressed at 

national and regional level. This, however, needs to be kept under review. 

If the masterplan is to sustain its status, then as key policy instruments 

evolve and are themselves subject to review, links to the masterplan 

need to be made to ensure ongoing consistency. This is a critical delivery 

task.

b) Championing and marketing the masterplan

Creating ‘status for the strategy’ is principally about ‘internal’ governance 

arrangements within Grantham and the sub-region. The critical step 

involves projecting the strategy beyond local interests and promoting its 

principles to external private sector investors. This requires a high profile 

and well co-ordinated approach that highlights priority development op-

portunities and potential within the town centre.

Re-branding the town

An effective ‘branding’ strategy should present a new, dynamic image for 

Grantham. This should emphasise the ambitions and opportunities being 

created through the strategy. ‘Place’ branding has become a key feature 

of many urban strategies. Its importance should not be under-estimated 

– a poor branding strategy can have long-term negative implications 

while a successful approach to branding can serve to transform external 

perceptions of a place. The previous Vision objective of the ‘connected 

town’ has emerged highlighting Grantham’s key assets of national rail 

and road connections and high quality of life.  This concept should be 

considered as part of future town branding work.

A Grantham ‘champion’

Effective advocacy requires a ‘champion’ to provide drive and focus. 

Leadership will be crucial in maintaining and increasing momentum on 

masterplan delivery. This is a high profile, role requiring well developed 

political and strategy skills as well as core expertise in property develop-

ment management. Early efforts should be made to confirm an individu-

al with the appropriate seniority, influence and skills to act as the ‘cham-

pion’ or Director for the masterplan and acting as the Executive lead for 

Grantham Futures / SKDC.  Subject to resources, it may be necessary to 

build an executive ‘delivery team’ around the Director as the intensity of 

delivery activity increases. 

c) Co-ordinating delivery activity

In the immediate delivery phase the focus of delivery effort should be 

upon generating momentum and profile for the masterplan and devel-

opment opportunities. A balance of effort is required between strategic 

planning / policy alignment and project development – both are critical 

to securing funding whether public or private sector. Certainly, the skill 

set required in the delivery team in advancing the strategy at the outset 

will go beyond project management skills only.

 



Final report
32

Grantham MASTERPLAN

The essential initial functions of a ‘delivery team’ would be:

ADVOCACY ----------------    CO-ORDINATION   ------------------   DELIVERY

Specifically, activities will include the following:

co-ordinate ongoing stakeholder engagement in the masterplan and 

act as the principal advocate;

define the investment priorities based on a targeted approach to-

wards the town centre;

develop a branding and marketing strategy and a prioritised ‘develop-

ment/investment prospectus’ for the town centre;

refine the level of information on each development site in terms of 

development capacity, infrastructure requirements and site assembly 

needs;

through representations, ensure the alignment of key policy tools to 

the town centre masterplan, including planning, transportation, eco-

nomic and environmental policies, particularly through the LDF;

co-ordinate the necessary inputs to work up detailed design propos-

als for key public realm proposals, including transport and environmen-

tal works;

prepare preliminary development briefs for each of the priority oppor-

tunities;

work with owners / occupiers of key sites to advance development 

projects;

engage with private sector developers to promote development op-

portunities in the town centre, including through competitive processes;

co-ordinate bids for public sector resources to advance priority public 

realm works.

In the medium term delivery phase there may be a case for a bespoke 

public-private joint venture development vehicle involving increased risk 

sharing, direct development activity and potentially recycling of devel-

opment receipts. This may need to be considered on a site-by-site basis 

or for the entire range of development sites.

In the longer term phase, urban management/governance arrange-

ments for the town centre will evolve through the masterplan delivery 

process. The present arrangements for Town Centre Management will 

need to be integrated with the masterplan delivery team.  However, it 

should be recognised that the skills and resources required for the deliv-

ery of complex physical development projects are very different to those 

required to delivery town centre management services. These functions 

should be complementary but require very different governance and 

management resources. 

Key project delivery issues and strategy

The project delivery issues and strategy proposals are presented in the 

strategies and project sheets that follow in Section 4.  For the key devel-

opment sites indicative development appraisals have been undertaken 

to establish a strategic view on requirements for public sector interven-

tion.  A summary of the outcomes of the indicative appraisals is present-

ed with the proformas.

Developer Engagement Strategy

Fundamental to the successful delivery of the overall masterplan will 

be the use of private finance to bring forward the development oppor-

tunities.  However, the encouragement of private sector finance will be 

dependant upon the ability of the masterplan and delivery framework to 

engender confidence in the private sector by reducing the risks associ-

ated with delivery.  Private sector investment will be seeking to obtain an 

adequate return to justify the risk associated with the investment.  

It will therefore be of importance that the masterplan provides clarity for 

the different uses and ability to provide a degree of certainty regarding 

public realm and infrastructure investments.  It will also be important to 

demonstrate commitment by the public sector to facilitate delivery.  

 



33

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

In engaging private finance there will be two primary sources, these 

will be developers and private landowners.   Their involvement will be 

dependant upon a number of factors, these chiefly being market de-

mand, the commercial viability of the schemes and their ability to fund 

development

The engagement strategy will be dependant upon site availability and 

level of return associated with the development.  Those sites whose 

delivery is not encumbered and have the potential to release the level 

of return required are likely to be brought forward by the private sec-

tor with minimal intervention.  Whereas those sites whose delivery is 

encumbered and which are not commercially viable will not be brought 

forward without some form of public sector intervention or until market 

demand has improved.     

In determining a strategy to encourage private sector finance it will be 

necessary to confirm the level of public sector intervention required to 

facilitate development.  There will be three distinct categories, which are 

as follows:

a) Facilitator  

b) Strategic Partnership 

c) Direct Intervention

Facilitator – The level of public sector intervention is likely to be minimal 

with support being required only to facilitate the process of delivery.  

This is where the opportunity will be delivered by the private sector, 

however support could be provided by the allocation of skills and ser-

vices to give momentum and to ‘lubricate’ the process.  

Partnership – In this instance there is a potential financial incentive to 

engage private sector finance, however, delivery is encumbered.  The pri-

vate sector will deliver the opportunity but would require the public sec-

tor to adopt a proactive role to facilitate delivery through the use of its 

skills, powers and resources.  A strategy would require the public sector 

to work in partnership with the private sector in order to encourage the 

use of private finance. The opportunities exist to engage with develop-

ers/landowners by the creation of strategic partnerships, such as a joint 

venture arrangement (JVs). A JV provides the opportunity for parties to 

work together, utilising the collective pool of assets (whether tangible or 

intangible), in the pursuit of complementary objectives and the delivery 

of a successful venture.  In terms of strategy the key feature is the abil-

ity to optimise the operation’s potential by introducing resources that 

would otherwise not be available to the individuals or parties con-

cerned such as the Compulsory Purchase of  sites where ownerships 

are fragmented and preventing development.

Direct Intervention – In this instance there is no incentive for the 

private sector to intervene in bringing forward development as it 

would not be commercially viable due to costs.  Direct public sector 

intervention would be necessary to meet the ‘gap’ if the private sector 

finance is to be engaged.  A strategy would require the public sector 

taking a lead role in delivery in the absence of the private sector with 

a view to engaging the private sector in the final delivery.

A strategy involving the intervention of the public sector  will be 

influenced and determined by various rules and guidance, particularly 

those relating to State Aid, Compulsory Purchase and disposal and 

acquisition of publicly owned land.    

 



Final report
34

Grantham MASTERPLAN

4achieving the vision4delivering the vision

 



35

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

4.0 Delivering the Vision

 comprised of a number of projects detailing policies, delivery paths and timescales

This section aims to identify the strategies

and action plans necessary to deliver th
e Vision. Each strategy is 

4.0 delivering the vision

In aiming to deliver the Vision for Grantham we have identified a set of strategies 

that aim to express in more tangible terms how the objectives identified in the 

previous section can be fulfilled. 

Each strategy is comprised of a number of projects defined within `Project Sheets’ 

which set out:

Description

Rationale 

Policy statement based on design, transport and development

Key delivery issues

Delivery strategy identifying critical path, funding and timescales 

A number of key development projects are also accompanied by illustrations 

of how new development and areas of enhanced public realm could look if the 

design policies within the project are applied. However, this is simply one possible 

outcome.

44

 



Final report
36

Grantham MASTERPLAN

th
e strateg

ic fra
m

ew
o

rk

 



37

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

4.1 The Strategic Framework

The plan opposite sets out the Strategic Framework for Grantham. This is a com-

posite plan that pulls together all the individual strategies and associated projects 

set out within the following section namely:

Redefining the centre

Creating character areas

Creating clear connections

Accessing the centre

Developing a spatial network

Creating a sustainable business environment

Extending and enhancing the role of the Isaac Newton Centre

Enhancing Grantham as a destination

Reinforcing civic service delivery

Encouraging urban living

Creating distinctive gateways and arrival points

Enhancing key vistas, buildings and frontages

 



Final report
38

Grantham MASTERPLAN

2

 



39

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

4.2 Redefining the centre 

The strategic objective is to redefine the town centre in order 

create a more concentrated centre to Grantham that is vital and 

lively and remains the focus for town activity.

The Strategic Objective

 



Final report
40

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



41

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : town centre boundary

DESCRIPTION

To produce a redefined town centre boundary that will inform a policy 

within the Local Development Framework  

RATIONALE

The reason for this defined area is that PPS6 Planning for Town Centres 

provides guidance on the location of town centre uses. This defintion 

is critical to the determination of planning applications that prevent 

further out of town development affecting the vitality and viability of 

the town centre.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 The area defined includes the primary shopping area, areas of 

leisure, business and other main town centre uses within or 

adjacent to the primary shopping area. 

Development defined as town centre uses by PPS 6 should be 

encouraged within this area before considering areas of opportunity 

outside. These include:

retail (including warehouse clubs, and factory outlet centres), 

leisure

entertainment

more intensive sport and recreation uses, 

offices 

arts

culture and tourism

2 None accessing traffic is to be prevented from accessing 

the town centre core through the implementation of a traffic 

management and car park strategy that prevents through 

traffic movements and minimises the need for vehicles to 

enter the town centre core.

3 All streets within the town centre core should be designed 

as shared pedestrian/vehicle surfaces where priority is 

given to the pedestrian and vehicle speeds are kept to

that of the pedestrian. Vehicle movement areas are to be kept 

to the minimum possible widths to ensure that manoeuvres 

can be undertaken safely, these areas are to be designated 

with roadside features rather than standard highway kerbs.

4 Public transport facilities are to be relocated to the core of the

town centre to increase the convenience of using public 

transport to access the retail and leisure facilities.

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The issue of delivering the defined area will be concerned with pres-

sure from developers on the emerging Local Development Framework 

to push forward sites and town centre uses outside the area. Delivery 

will also depend on agreeing the defined area in more detail with key 

stakeholders, public agencies. developers and landowners.  

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : A more detailed survey of uses within the defined 

   area to meet PPS 6 town centre uses in order to refine 

   the boundary.  

   To identify the most effective planning vehicle for 

   adoption

Funding : South Kesteven District Council

Timescale : Short

Priority : High

 



Final report
42

Grantham MASTERPLAN

creatin
g

 ch
a

ra
cter a

rea
s

3

 



43

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.3 Creating character areas

In aiming to encourage a town of different experiences the ob-

jective is to create a series of distinctive places within Grantham 

or areas of well defined character which have their own clear 

identity. These are notably Station Gateway, the Commercial 

Core, Parkside, Old Town and the Civic Heart.

 



Final report
44

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



45

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : station gateway

DESCRIPTION

To create a new distinctive character area around Grantham Station 

by developing and reinforcing distinctive patterns of development, 

public realm and culture.

RATIONALE

Creating a new character area will improve the gateway to the town as 

people arrive at the Station and provide a means for people to better 

orientate themselves by developing an area that is distinctive from 

those around it.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 The treatment of new and existing development and the 

public realm needs to take account of the existing character 

within the area and aim to reinforce it but in a contemporary 

and creative way.

2 New development should respond to local buildings forms 

and patterns of development in its detailed layout and design 

reinforcing the sense of identity.

3 Distinctiveness should be encouraged in the application of:

  Scale, texture and colour

  Elements of the street scene such as lighting, 

  railings, litter bins, paving, street furniture and public 

  art 

4 The scale, massing and height of proposed development 

should be considered in relation to that of adjoining buildings, 

the topography, the general pattern of heights in the area and 

views, vistas and landmarks.

  

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

A key delivery issue will be defining the area more clearly and agree-

ing this with stakeholders including Network Rail and SKDC. In addi-

tion, a further issue will be finding the most robust way of represent-

ing the character area within local planning policy.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : A more detailed survey to define character includ-

   ing buildings, landscape, public realm, materials and 

   patterns of local life     

   To identify the most effective planning vehicle for 

   adoption

Funding : South Kesteven District Council

Timescale : Short

Priority : Low

 



Final report
46

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



47

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : civic heart

DESCRIPTION

To create a new distinctive character area around the Guildhall by de-

veloping and reinforcing distinctive patterns of development, public 

realm and culture.

RATIONALE

Creating a new character area around the Guildhall that reinforces the 

area as the civic focus for Grantham and provide a means for people 

to better orientate themselves by developing an area that is distinc-

tive from those around it.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 The treatment of new and existing development and the 

public realm needs to take account of the existing character 

within the area and aim to reinforce it but in a contemporary 

and creative way.

2 New development should respond to local buildings forms 

and patterns of development in its detailed layout and design 

reinforcing the sense of identity.

3 Distinctiveness should be encouraged in the application of:

  Scale, texture and colour

  Elements of the street scene such as lighting, 

  railings, litter bins, paving, street furniture and public 

  art 

4 The scale, massing and height of proposed development 

should be considered in relation to that of adjoining buildings, 

the topography, the general pattern of heights in the area and 

views, vistas and landmarks.

  

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

A key delivery issue will be defining the area more clearly and agree-

ing this with stakeholders including the PCT and SKDC. In addition, a 

further issue will be finding the most robust way of representing the 

character area within local planning policy.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : A more detailed survey to define character includ-

   ing buildings, landscape, public realm, materials and 

   patterns of local life     

   To identify the most effective planning vehicle for 

   adoption

Funding : South Kesteven District Council

Timescale : Short

Priority : Low

 



Final report
48

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



49

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 3 : old town

DESCRIPTION

To create a new distinctive character area around St Wulframs Church-

by developing and reinforcing distinctive patterns of development, 

public realm and culture.

RATIONALE

Creating a new character area around St Wulframs Church that rein-

forces the area as the historic part of Grantham and provide a means 

for people to better orientate themselves by developing an area that 

is distinctive from those around it.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 The treatment of new and existing development and the 

public realm needs to take account of the existing character 

within the area and aim to reinforce it but in a contemporary 

and creative way.

2 New development should respond to local buildings forms 

and patterns of development in its detailed layout and design 

reinforcing the sense of identity.

3 Distinctiveness should be encouraged in the application of:

  Scale, texture and colour

  Elements of the street scene such as lighting, 

  railings, litter bins, paving, street furniture and public 

  art 

4 The scale, massing and height of any proposed development 

should be considered in relation to that of adjoining buildings, 

the topography, the general pattern of heights in the area and 

views, vistas and landmarks.

  

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

A key delivery issue will be defining the area more clearly and agree-

ing this with stakeholders including the Church, National Trust and 

SKDC. In addition, a further issue will be the finding the most robust 

way of ensconcing the character area within local planning policy.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : A more detailed survey to define character includ-

   ing buildings, landscape, public realm, materials and 

   patterns of local life     

   To identify the most effective planning vehicle for 

   adoption

Funding : South Kesteven District Council

Timescale : Short

Priority : Low

 



Final report
50

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



51

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 4 : parkside

DESCRIPTION

To create a new distinctive character area around the Park including 

Wyndham Park and Sedgewick Meadows by developing and reinforc-

ing distinctive patterns of landscape, public realm and culture.

RATIONALE

Creating a new character area around the Park that reinforces the 

area as the main green space within Grantham and provide a means 

for people to better orientate themselves by providing an area that is 

distinctive from those around it.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Any enhancement of the Park should protect and reinforce 

the natural and environmental aspects including the River 

Witham

2 Any enhancement should respond to the natural qualities of 

the Park including planting, water bodies, topography and 

areas of activity.

3 Distinctiveness should be encouraged in the application of:

  Scale, texture and colour

  Elements of the Park such as lighting, railings,

   litter bins, planting, furniture and public art 

4 The scale, massing and height of any proposed development 

should be considered in relation to that of adjoining buildings, 

the topography, the general pattern of heights in the area and 

views, vistas and landmarks.

  

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

A key delivery issue will be defining the area more clearly and agree-

ing this with stakeholders including the National Trust and SKDC. In 

addition, a further issue will be the finding the most robust way of 

representing the character area within local planning policy.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : A more detailed survey to define character includ-

   ing topography, landscape, public realm, materials 

   and patterns of local life    

   To identify the most effective planning vehicle for 

   adoption

Funding : South Kesteven District Council

Timescale : Short

Priority : Low

 



Final report
52

Grantham MASTERPLAN

creatin
g

 clea
r co

n
n

ectio
n

s

4

 



53

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.4 Creating clear connections

The objective is to provide a clear and hierarchical series of 

connections between key destinations both those existing and 

those proposed. The hierarchy is based on the balance of pe-

destrians to vehicles. Main routes should be vehicle oriented, 

secondary routes an equal balance but weighted in favour of 

pedestrians and tertiary routes completely pedestrian focused.

 



Final report
54

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



55

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1: station boulevard

DESCRIPTION

Produce a safe direct pedestrian and cycle link between the town 

centre core and the railway station.

RATIONALE

Encourage rail users into the town centre core to utilise the retail and 

leisure facilities and to increase the potential rail access to the town 

centre.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Implement a high quality direct pedestrian/cycle route 

between the Railway Station and the Market Place.

2 The route should be addressed by active frontages including 

windows, entrances and doors 

3 The route should include high quality and contemporary 

public realm treatment including:

  street furniture

  lighting

  public art

  signage

  paving and planting

  

4 The route should minimise the visual and evironmental 

impact of parking and street clutter

5 Develop an improvement scheme which would include 

  widening to allow segregated cycle and pedestrian 

  movements where possible

  implementation of traffic management to provide shared 

  surfaces on the residential routes adjacent to the station

relocation and redesign of the crossing of Wharf road to 

provide a raised direct link for pedestrian and cyclists;

development of improved routes through the bus station    

and retail areas to the Market Square

improvements to lighting and personal security through    

CCTV and natural surveillance.

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Identify preferred route and safeguard it against future 

development.

Implement a promotional campaign to rail users to encourage them 

to visit the town centre..

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : Lincolnshire County Council, South Kesteven District 

Council, Local Developers, Network Rail.

Critical Path : Identify preferred route for the pedestrian/cycle link.

   Detailed design of pedestrian/cycle link.

   Scheme implementation

Funding : LTP, Other Council Grants, Network Rail, Developer.

Timescale : Short

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
56

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



57

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : grantham lanes

DESCRIPTION

Provision of high quality pedestrian routes into and through the pro-

posed development in the Greyfriars area to the rear of the premises 

on Westgate

RATIONALE

To provide excellent and attractive pedestrian routes to the premises 

to be developed to the rear of Westgate and raise the amount of foot-

fall to this area.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Implement at least three high quality direct pedestrian 

routes between Westgate and Greyfriars penetrating the 

proposed development site utilising new and existing 

pedestrian routes through the Westgate frontages.

2  Create an additional route through the proposed 

development at Greyfriars that runs parallel to Westgate 

connecting the proposed development to Union Street.

3 Ensure that any development proposals on the land   

between Greyfriars and the rear of the properties on Westgate 

includes the provision of pedestrian routes and does not 

prohibit the implementation of the proposed network of 

routes.

4 The routes should include high quality and contemporary 

public realm treatment including:

  street furniture

  lighting

  public art

  signage

  paving and planting

  

5 The routes should be pedestrian oriented or even car free

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Investigate opportunities to provide pedestrian routes through the

Westgate frontage properties set against aspirations of current land  

owners

Design the pedestrian routes as part of the overall site masterplan   

for the Greyfriars development.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council, Land Owners

Critical Path : Masterplan the redevelopment of the Greyfriars Area

   Ensure that any development schemes allow the 

   implementation of the network of pedestrian routes   

   through the area.

Funding : Developer.

Timescale : Medium

Priority : High

 



Final report
58

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



59

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 3 : green mile

DESCRIPTION

Produce a safe and direct pedestrian and cycle link between the Park 

and the Canal Basin, which links the National Cycle Network and also 

improves cross town pedestrian and cycle linkages

RATIONALE

Encourage greater access to the town centre and the park from the 

adjacent residential areas using pedestrian and cycle modes. Provides 

a link between 2 environmentally significant areas.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Implement a high quality direct pedestrian/cycle route 

between the Canal Basin and the Park linking two sections 

of the National Cycle route that pass through the town centre 

and creating a ecologically and visually interesting route 

through the town centre.

2 The route should capitalise on eco-design opportunities 

associated with public realm treatment, adjacent new   

development and public art such as:

  cycle paths and parking

  traffic free streets

  sustainable building design - solar  and PV Panels, 

  micro-renewables, grey water recycling and high 

  insulation

  use of water and natural materials

3 The routes should include high quality and contemporary 

public realm treatment including:

  street furniture

  lighting

  public art

  signage

  paving and planting

4 Ensure the route is addressed by active frontages such as 

entrances, windows, spill out activites from buildings

  

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Implement the improvement scheme for the Wharf Road/Sankt 

Augustine Way junction to include high quality pedestrian/cycle   

crossing facilities.

Identify preferred route and safeguard it against future 

development.

Integrate the route into the masterplan for the Kwik Save 

development.

Produce a detailed design of the route to allow segregated cycle and 

pedestrian movements, high levels of personal security, segregation 

from general vehicles, areas of public art and high townscape interest.

Develop the river crossing and route through the park.

Implement a promotional campaign to visitors and residents to en-

courage them to use the Green Mile.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : Lincolnshire County Council, South Kesteven District   

              Council

Critical Path : Identify preferred route for the pedestrian/cycle link.

   Detailed design of pedestrian/cycle link.

Scheme implementation

Funding : LTP, Other Council Grants, Developer

Timescale : Short

Priority : High

 



Final report
60

Grantham MASTERPLAN

a
ccessin

g
 th

e cen
tre

5

 



61

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.5 Accessing the centre

The objective of this strategy is to restrict vehicle movements 

into the town centre to people that require to do it as a necessi-

ty and encourage the use of alternative modes of transport such 

as cycling, walking and public transport.

 



Final report
62

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



63

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : car park management

DESCRIPTION

Development and implementation of an integrated car park strategy 

for the town centre aimed at improving the efficiency of the available 

parking and minimising the need for non-essential vehicle move-

ments.

RATIONALE

Improve the efficiency and usage of the parking areas, minimise non-

essential vehicle movements within the town centre and remove the 

need for private vehicles to enter the town centre core.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Concentrate all public town centre parking on specifically 

identified sites located on the edge of the town centre core 

close to the entry points to the town centre. Utilise the station 

car park for shopper and evening parking outside core station 

parking periods

2 Implementation of parking decriminalisation for the town 

centre.

3 Implementation of Residential Controlled Parking Zones 

for the residential areas surrounding the town centre core.

4 Maintain/reduce the existing car parking levels within the 

town centre to those provided in the main public car parks 

at the present time (excluding the station car park) with 

more areas being made available for short stay parking 

through the conversion of long term parking spaces.

5 Provision of allocated disabled spaces within the core of the 

town centre.

6 Redevelopment of existing car parking areas that do not form 

part of this core parking strategy.

7 Design and implementation of a signage and car park    

management strategy/system that directs drivers to the   

nearest available parking spaces at their initial entry corridor to 

the town centre.

8 Implement a car parking policy for development sites that   

minimises non public parking for non residential developments

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Undertake a review of existing car park demand and capacity and   

existing car park policies.

Develop a detailed car parking strategy.

Implement a car park management system utilising both static and   

Variable Message Signs.

Develop a car parking policy for Town Centre developments.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council, Lincolnshire County                

               Council

Critical Path : Development of specific parking policies;

   Undertake a detailed review of existing parking   

   Identification and detailed development of car park

   ing strategy;

Design and implement a car park management 

   system

Funding : LTP and Local Authority Funding for strategy development 

and car park management system; Development funding for car park 

improvements/development.

Timescale : Short

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
64

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



65

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : 

DESCRIPTION

Implementation of a traffic management strategy within the town 

centre core that prevents the movement of through traffic and re-

stricts vehicle access to servicing and essential access only..

RATIONALE

Minimise the traffic movements within the town centre core real-

locating road space to pedestrian, cycle and public transport modes. 

Improves the pedestrian safety and quality of the townscape within 

the centre and improves pedestrian circulation.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Develop and implement a traffic management system within 

the town centre core that prevents through traffic movements 

and reallocates the road space to pedestrian, cycle and public 

transport modes. This could include vehicular access to the

town centre be provided by one way loops serving the   

northern and southern areas of the town as follows;

•  Northern Loop (clockwise) – Watergate Street, Market Square, 

Union Street with the northern section of Watergate Street to the 

car park entrance and the section of Union Street between Brook 

Street and Greyfriars remaining two-way.

• Southern Loop (anticlockwise) – St Peters Hill, High Street, Guild-

hall Street, Wide Westgate. 

Sections of High Street and Westgate between these two loops 

become restricted for buses only and will be where bus stops are 

located within the town centre. Access to these areas for the servicing 

of properties should be restricted to early in the morning before the 

main retail periods or late in the evening after the main leisure periods 

if alternative servicing arrangements are not available.

It is suggested that buses be allowed to move in a northbound direc-

tion along High Street and southbound along Westgate. Changes to 

the High Street market Square junction will be required to ensure that 

buses can turn from High Street to Westgate.

Allowing buses to use these routes will provide a level of priority to bus 

movements through the town centre and will ensure that buses will 

continue to penetrate the town centre.

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Develop options for a traffic management strategy for the entire   

town centre;

Model the traffic effects of the transport strategy;

Produce detailed designs of preferred strategy;

Implement the preferred strategy on a phased basis.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council, Lincolnshire County 

Council

Critical Path :  Identify and test potential strategies;

   Undertake a detailed design of preferred strategy;

   Prepare and consult on Highway Orders

   Implement Scheme

Funding : LTP and Local Authority Funding for strategy development 

and developer funding for the implementation of the scheme to come 

from all town centre developments.

Timescale : Short

Priority : High

 



Final report
66

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



67

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 3 : reduction of through

DESCRIPTION

Reduce the levels of through traffic that enter the town centre espe-

cially HGV and general traffic using the A52.

RATIONALE

Reducing the levels of traffic passing through the town centre will 

relieve congestion and also reduce the incidences of bridge strikes at 

the railway bridges on the approaches to the town centre.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Promote the implementation of the Southern A52 bypass 

through developer funding to remove through traffic from the 

town centre

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Identify potential routes for the bypass scheme.

Identify potential development sites along the route and potential   

funding sources.

Discuss rail crossing with Network Rail together with 

implementation and funding potential.

Implement scheme as the first stage of a comprehensive 

development programme along the route.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : Lincolnshire County Council, South Kesteven District 

Council, Local Developers, Network Rail.

Critical Path :  Identification of a preferred route for the bypass.

   Preparation of a development masterplan around 

    the preferred route.

Investigate rail crossings with Network Rail

Identification of potential funding sources.

Scheme detailed development and implementation

Funding : Network Rail, Developer

Timescale : Medium

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
68

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



69

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 4 : public transport

DESCRIPTION

Increase the role of bus and rail public transport as convenient and 

attractive travel modes to access the town centre area reducing the 

reliance on the use of the private car.

RATIONALE

Increased usage of public transport modes will result in a reduction in 

car traffic in the town centre thus reducing congestion and demand 

for car parking. Improvements to public transport will also improve 

the accessibility of the town centre to those people without access to 

a car for the journey purpose.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Move the town centre bus stops and passenger facilities 

including passenger information and rest facilities into the 

core of the town centre on High Street and Westgate.

2 Improve the town centre passenger facilities with better 

waiting areas, improved security and real time passenger 

information.

3 Development of bus only streets within the town centre

core along Westgate and High Street to allow through bus 

movements and provide buses with priority over the car 

within the town centre.

4 Redevelopment of the bus station for non-transport uses.

5 Extend bus services to the rail station to allow interchange 

with rail services.

6 Improve pedestrian connectivity between the rail station and 

the town centre core.

7 Improve the passenger facilities within the rail station and 

provide areas for bus interchange and layover immediately 

outside the rail station access.

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Develop options for a traffic management strategy for the entire   

town centre integrating the bus facilities and priority measures.

Relocate passenger facilities into the core of the town centre.

Identify opportunities for integrating bus and rail services with the   

operators.

Undertake a study considering the role of the rail station developing 

a strategy for improving the facilities and bus interchange.

Introduce real time passenger information on all routes.

Increased promotion of the bus and rail services.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council, Bus Operators, Network 

Rail

Critical Path :  Relocation of bus facilities and the implementation   

   of priority routes and bus only areas within the town   

   centre core.

Extension of bus services to interchange with the   

   railway station.

Removal of the bus station.

Study to identify improvements to the rail station   

   and its environs.

Improvements to pedestrian links between the rail   

    station and the town centre.

Implementation of real time passenger information   

    system.

 Funding : LTP,Local Authority Funding, Network Rail, Developer.

Timescale : Short to medium

Priority : High

 



Final report
70

Grantham MASTERPLAN

creatin
g

 a
 spatia

l n
etw

o
rk

6

 



71

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.6 Developing a spatial network

This objective is a combination of proposing the improvement 

of existing streets and spaces such as Market Place, St Peters Hill, 

High Street and Westgate, whilst proposing new spaces along 

key routes and arrival points

 



Final report
72

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



73

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : st peters hill

DESCRIPTION

To improve, enhance and re-invigorate St Peters Hill open space as a 

high quality public space  and a place of congregation linked to the 

Guildhall and the Isaac Newton Centre.

RATIONALE

To reclaim St Peters Hill for pedestrians in order for it to be a place that 

people can enjoy, use for recreation and social interaction

POLICY STATEMENT

1 This space is intended as a recreational urban space for 

people to relax in and people watch which should include a 

high quality, co-ordinated and contemporary set of elements 

notably:

  street furniture

  planting

  lighting

  signage

2 Improve the link between the Guildhall and St Peters Hill

for pedestrians which may include new surface treatment, 

planting or removal of the existing access road 

3 Improve the connection to the Isaac Newtown Centre which 

may include surface changes on High Street and the re-

orientation of footpaths through St Peters Hill

4 Encourage the provision of a kiosk or small pavilion within the 

space to further invigorate and encourage active use.

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Consider any detrimental highway and access issues related to re-  

moving the access road adjacent to Guildhall

Encourage the re-use of the Guildhall front entrance in order to   

have direct spill out of people onto the open space 

A public realm strategy is required to establish overall design treat-

ments for key spaces and linkages in Grantham. The strategy should 

be distinctive and reinforce Granthams character and cover elements 

which include paving, seating, signage, lighting and public arts.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : Establish design brief to reflect spatial history, issues, 

    intended design functions and appearance.

   Establish strategic costs

Establish sources of funding and likely implemen-

   tation, programme and phasing    

   Carry out detailed survey of external elements, envi-  

   ronmental conditions and underlying services

   Preliminary consultation with key stakeholders, trad

   -ers to establish functional requirements and design   

   aims

   Develop sketch design solutions and consult on   

   emerging proposals

   Consider inter-relationship with traffic management   

   and other associated issues

   Develop preferred scheme

   Establish implementation programme and liaise with 

   stakeholders on potential disruption issues

 Funding : Local or Regional Authority 

Timescale : Medium

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
74

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



75

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : market place

DESCRIPTION

To improve, enhance and reclaim the Market Place for pedestrians as a 

high quality focal space for the town 

RATIONALE

The town needs a central space that is aimed at pedestrians and a 

place where people can congregate for social and community interac-

tion

POLICY STATEMENT

1 This space is intended as a lively and active urban space for 

people to interact in and people watch which should include 

a high quality, co-ordinated and contemporary set of   

elements notably:

  street furniture

  planting

  lighting

  signage

  public art

Reference should be made to the Conduit and its historic role 

within the town

2 Rationalise the amount of parking to meet just the needs of 

essential users such as the disabled

3 Make the space more pedestrian oriented through changes in 

surface treatment, planting and highway design 

4 Maintain active frontages and spill out from uses around 

the periphery of the space 

5 Maintain simple, direct and obvious pedestrian links to   

Greyfriars and High Street

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Consider the current scheme for the Market Place being promoted   

by Lincolnshire County Council and South Kesteven District Council

Impact of any redesign on the Market Place traders and the Mid Lent 

Fair

The removal of parking and the affect on traders

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council and LCC

Critical Path : Establish design brief to reflect spatial history, issues, 

    intended design functions and appearance.

   Establish strategic costs

Establish sources of funding and likely implemen-

   tation, programme and phasing    

   Carry out detailed survey of external elements, envi-  

   ronmental conditions and underlying services

   Preliminary consultation with key stakeholders and   

   traders to establish functional requirements and design 

   aims

   Develop sketch design solutions and consult on   

   emerging proposals

   Consider inter-relationship with traffic management   

   and other associated issues

   Develop preferred scheme

   Establish implementation programme and liaise with 

   stakeholders on potential disruption issues

 Funding : Local, Regional Authority or developer

Timescale : Short

Priority : High

 



Final report
76

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



77

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 3 : guildhall, high street and westgate

DESCRIPTION

To improve, enhance and reclaim High Street, Guildhall Street and 

Westgate for pedestrian activity

RATIONALE

To encourage the greater use of central streets by people and to cre-

ate a healthier, safer, creative and more comfortable street experience.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 These streets are intended as lively and active streets for 

people to interact in and people watch which should include 

a high quality, co-ordinated and contemporary set of   

elements notably:

  street furniture

  planting

  lighting

  signage

  public art

  paving

2 Make the space more pedestrian oriented through changes in 

surface treatment, planting and highway design 

3 Rationalise parking in Westgate and Wide Westgate to   

essential users only such as the disabled 

4 Ensure active frontages and spill out from uses around   

the street edges

5 Maintain simple, direct and obvious pedestrian links from 

Westgate to Greyfriars

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Consider the current scheme for the High Street and Westgate being 

promoted by Lincolnshire County Council and South Kesteven 

District Council

Impact of any redesign of Westgate on the Market Place traders and   

the Mid Lent Fair

The removal of parking and the affect on traders

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council

Critical Path : Establish design brief to reflect spatial history, issues, 

    intended design functions and appearance.

   Establish strategic costs

Establish sources of funding and likely implemen-

   tation, programme and phasing    

   Carry out detailed survey of external elements, envi-  

   ronmental conditions and underlying services

   Preliminary consultation with key stakeholders and   

   traders to establish functional requirements and design 

   aims

   Develop sketch design solutions and consult on   

   emerging proposals

   Consider inter-relationship with traffic management   

   and other associated issues

   Develop preferred scheme

   Establish implementation programme and liaise with 

   stakeholders on potential disruption issues

 Funding : Local, Regional Authority and developers

Timescale : Short

Priority : High

 



Final report
78

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



79

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 4 : castlegate square

DESCRIPTION

A new local square at the convergence of Finkin Street and Castlegate

RATIONALE

To provide a new space at a key intersection of two main routes 

related to new development at the former Kwik Save site as well as 

providing an additional space along the Green Mile to become part of 

a sequence running from the Park to the Canal Basin. 

POLICY STATEMENT

1 This square is intended as a low key semi-active urban space 

where people can  sit and people watch. The square should include a 

high quality, contemporary and co-ordinated set of elements notably:

  street furniture

  planting

  lighting

  signage

  public art

  paving

2 Sustainable materials should be used in the treatment of all 

public relam elements 

4 Ensure active frontages and spill out from uses around   

the edges of the space

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The need to maximise the development potential of the former Kwik 

Save site

Access to existing properties and buildings

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council and developer

Critical Path : Develop aspirational site and open space brief  

   Seek competitive submission from developers and   

        design teams 

Appoint winning team

   Agree detailed brief

   Proceed to planning application and approval process

 Funding : Developer 

Timescale : Medium

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
80

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



81

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 5 : station square

DESCRIPTION

A new square outside Grantham Station

RATIONALE

To create a positive arrival experience outside the station and a place 

people can utilise in waiting for departing and arriving trains. 

POLICY STATEMENT

1 This square is intended as an active urban space where 

people can meet, interact and people watch. The square 

should include a high quality, contemporary  and 

co-ordinated set of elements notably:

  street furniture

  planting

  lighting

  signage

  public art

  paving

2 Inclusion of a kiosk or pavilion for the provision of   

refreshments and to activate the space more

3 Ensure active frontages and spill out from uses around   

the edges of the space

4 Minimise the intrusion of car parking and vehicle access

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The willingness of landowners to include a new space as part of a   

redevelopment scheme

Access to existing properties and buildings

The loss of parking 

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : Network Rail and developer

Critical Path : Develop aspirational site and open space brief  

   Seek competitive submission from developers and   

        design teams 

Appoint winning team

   Agree detailed brief

   Proceed to planning application and approval proces 

 Funding : Developer and Network Rail

Timescale : Long

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
82

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



83

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 6 : grantham park 

DESCRIPTION

Enhance, revitalise and improve Wyndham Park and Sedgewick Mead-

ows.

RATIONALE

To increase the useage and activities within the Park making it a fur-

ther attraction in the overall offer of Grantham 

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Any enhancement should respect the environmental and 

landscape qualities of the Park

  

2 Comprise additional attractions that could include:

  Urban Farm

  Extended water body or river widening

  Town Gardens

  Outdoor performance space

  A3 retail

3 Enhancements shoud include creative and innovative:

  lighting

  public art

  furniture

  

4 Additional and improved cyleways and footways   

complementing the riverwalk

5 The inclusion of Interpretative signage at key intersections 

and destinations

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The willingness of landowners to invest in the Park 

The continuance of the tenant farmer at Sedgewick Meadows and the 

future aspirations of the National Trust

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council and National Trust

Critical Path : Establish design brief to reflect spatial history, issues, 

    intended design functions and appearance.

   Establish strategic costs

Establish sources of funding and likely implemen-

   tation, programme and phasing    

   Carry out detailed survey of external elements, envi-  

   ronmental conditions and underlying services

   Preliminary consultation with key stakeholders to   

   establish functional requirements and design aims

   Develop sketch design solutions and consult on   

   emerging proposals

   Consider inter-relationship with traffic management   

   and other associated issues

   Develop preferred scheme

   Establish implementation programme and liaise with 

   stakeholders on potential disruption issues

 Funding : South Kesteven District Council

Timescale : Long

Priority : Low

 



Final report
84

Grantham MASTERPLAN

creatin
g

 su
sta

in
a

ble bu
sin

ess 

7

 



85

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.7 Creating a sustainable business environment

This objective is to create a new business quarter within 

Grantham to provide quality floorspace in order to bring for-

ward employment and provide the potential for developing 

new learning and skills 

 



Final report
86

Grantham MASTERPLAN

view along station boulevard towards grantham station

 



87

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : station point

DESCRIPTION

Development of a new mixed-use business quarter (including residen-

tial considered later in the report) linked to the rail station and town 

centre, targeting regional businesses requiring strategic access to 

London and regional markets.  

RATIONALE

Strategic

To enhance Grantham’s sub-regional potential as a business 

location and stimulate creation of a sustainable office market in the 

town. The lack of quality office accommodation limits Grantham’s po-

tential economic role and constrains the potential of the rail connec-

tion as an economic driver.

Local

To make better use of this strategic site linking the station and 

town centre in enhancing the town centre vitality and viability.

To increase local economic development potential and in-

crease town centre footfall.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  Offices for sale freehold – 20,000 sq ft net

  Offices for rent/investment sale – 20,000 sq ft net

  A c. 80 bed hotel with integral pub

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for active retail uses at ground floor especially 

around public spaces such as cafes, restaurants and specialist 

shops (subject to market demand)

4 On site parking for all uses, including multi-storey solutions,   

should be concealed behind building frontages or below

buildings in such a way that active frontages are maintained at   

street level. Car parking for the disabled should also be included 

on site

5 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets or 

in rear courts.

6 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Station Boulevard and Railway Terrace and Queen   

Street

7 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 storeys 

in height allowing for key buildings of up to 5 storeys

8 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

9 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

10 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

11 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
88

Grantham MASTERPLAN

illustrative layout for station point

 



89

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The site is in mixed ownership (principally Tanvic Tyres and Jews-

ons timber merchants).  Redevelopment would necessitate relocat-

ing existing uses and sufficient incentive for current landowners to 

participate in a development project – the provision of an acceptable 

level of rail user car parking will also be required.  Existing residential 

properties add to the complexity of the local assembly requirements.

There is potential market demand for freehold high quality office 

units in Grantham, with good take-up prospects if speculative devel-

opment could be achieved.  Securing a major public sector pre-let 

could support leasehold provision and would provide an important 

catalyst to the scheme. Existing access arrangements to the site will 

require re-configuration, and the proposals include a new access/

spine road through the site.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  This is a complex scheme which is likely to require a 

public sector led delivery approach to address strategic constraints 

such as land assembly, preferably in partnership with a lead private 

sector development partner. Given the land ownership pattern, 

piecemeal development is unlikely to be achievable and will require a 

comprehensive approach, led by a detailed development brief.  While 

development will come forward in phases, in response to market de-

mand, site assembly, preparation and servicing is likely to be required 

in advance.  This will be a critical role for the public sector, with a view 

to a public/private partnership approach to on-site development 

delivery and sharing of any development returns.

Financial Appraisal  : Indicative development appraisal suggests a sig-

nificant potential viability gap based on current development mix and 

values (see opposite).  This could be reduced through refinement of 

the scheme, but points to the need for strong commitment from the 

public sector to deliver this important proposal for Grantham’s future

 Policy alignment : Alignment of planning policy is required to confirm 

the mixed-use proposals and support future land assembly processes.  

Given the expressed resistance of current landowners, a clear plan-

ning policy position will be required to support any potential require-

ment to resort to compulsory purchase.

Prioritisation : This project is considered to be a high priority for mas-

terplan delivery, requiring early commitment of project management 

resources to move the project forward.  The scale and complexity of 

the scheme, however, points to a long-term delivery strategy.

DEVELOPMENT APPRAISAL INFORMATION

• Phasing

- Start on site and hotel land sale at month 6

- 3 phases of offices/residential

- 9 months to build each phase

- Each phase sold (12 months after completion of construction)   

before subsequent phase starts

- Site works overlap phases 1 and 2

- LH office investment sold on completion (ie pre-let assumed)

• Values

- FH offices - £150 psf

- LH offices - £12 psf with 12 month rent free period and 8% net   

investment yield

- Town houses - £270,000 each (£180 psf )

- Flats - £130,000 each (£200 psf )

- Hotel – Land sale at £500,000 

• Costs

- Fixed build costs (demolition, groundworks, new road and   

infrastructure) - £740,000

- Unit build costs:-

- FH offices and residential - £85 psf gross

- LH offices - £95 psf gross

• Outcome

- Scheme overall requires c. £1.25m of gap funding plus funding 

for site purchase

• Comments

- Viability is adversely effected by high level of infrastructure cost 

and 25% affordable housing assumptions

- Residential element alone should be viable

- Office values are relatively untested in Grantham and may be   

conservative. In particular:

- If early office phase sold well higher values could be established 

for subsequent phases

- Value of FH offices is very sensitive to yield adopted. If a tenant 

of good covenant (eg the “back office” function of a London 

based company or government department could be    

attracted on a lease of acceptable length (10 years plus) then a   

significantly lower yield and higher value could result

- At least initially, the scheme will require public sector    

intervention and subsidy to bring it forward.

 



Final report
90

Grantham MASTERPLAN

en
h

a
n

cin
g

 th
e ro

le o
f th

e in
c

8

 



91

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.8 Extending and enhancing the role of the Isaac 

Newton Centre

The objective is to both enhance the existing Centre which may 

be through internal reconfiguration or refurbishment but also to 

extend its role around the retail heart of the town.

 



Final report
92

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



93

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : greenwood row

DESCRIPTION

Redevelopment of existing car parking/ service areas to extend INC 

and intensify town centre retail use in the prime area.

RATIONALE

Strategic

To extend the range and quality of retail provision at INC and 

improve linkage to the wider town centre retail offer, increasing po-

tential attractiveness of Grantham as a sub-regional destination.

Local 

To re-enforce retail provision in the centre and make effective 

use of under-utilised back-land in the prime area

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  27,500 sq ft of retail

  90 two bed flats of 650 sq ft each

  

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for buildings to have a vertical mix of uses to 

achieve storey heights. Maker provision for active retail uses at 

ground floor especially around public spaces such as cafes, 

restaurants and specialist shops

4 Include parking for residential units which is adequate for their 

needs but which does not adversely affect the urban form and   

character of the area. Car parking provision at less than   

one space per unit will be appropriate where good

quality alternatives are integrated and where there is good   

access to public transport. On site parking for all uses, including 

multi-storey solutions, should be concealed behind building 

frontages or below buildings in such a way that active frontages 

are maintained at street level. Car parking for the disabled   

should also be included on site

5 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets or 

in rear courts.

6 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Greenwood Row, High Street and the existing INC.

7 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 storeys 

in height.

8 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

9 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

10 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

11 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
94

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



95

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The site is in multiple ownership and has no current profile, lying at 

the rear of the High Street.  The configuration of future development 

is constrained by the restricted site area, adjacent uses and access 

limitations.  The principal owner, Morrison’s Supermarkets, are unlikely 

to promote early redevelopment given delivery complexities and this 

is likely to be a long-term proposition to cater for future expansion of 

retail use following growth of the town’s economy in line with master-

plan strategies.

The market response to the site is likely to be limited in the short-

term given more deliverable projects, such as Greyfriars.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

This site is a longer-term opportunity for the town centre, which 

should be reflected in planning policy provisions at this stage.  Project 

management resources should not be diverted to this opportunity 

until other key sites, including Greyfriars and Wharf Place (the Post 

Office site) have been advanced to the point of development delivery.  

Greenwood Row will represent a future phase of town centre redevel-

opment beyond the current proposals.

 



Final report
96

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



97

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : wharf place

DESCRIPTION

Redevelopment of Post Office / sorting office and Bus Station site 

for mixed retail/residential use to extend town centre retail offer and 

intensify retail use in the prime area..

RATIONALE

Strategic

To extend the range and quality of retail provision in the 

prime area and increase Grantham’s attractiveness as a sub-regional 

destination.

Local

To create an improved ‘gateway’ at a key entry point to the 

town centre in a prominent location.

To make beneficial use of the Bus Station site

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  28,500 sq ft of retail

  95 two bed flats of 650 sq ft each

  95 integral parking spaces

  

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for buildings to have a vertical mix of uses to 

achieve storey heights. Make provision for active retail uses 

at ground floor especially around public spaces such as cafes 

and restaurants

4 Include parking for residential units which is adequate for their 

needs but which does not adversely affect the urban form and   

character of the area. Car parking provision at less than   

one space per unit will be appropriate where good

quality alternatives are integrated and where there is good   

access to public transport. On site parking for all uses, including 

multi-storey solutions, should be concealed behind building 

frontages or below buildings in such a way that active frontages 

are maintained at street level. Car parking for the disabled   

should also be included on site

5 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets or 

in rear courts.

6 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Wharf Road and the existing INC

7 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 storeys 

in height allowing for key buildings of up to 4 storeys

8 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

9 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

10 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

11 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
98

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



99

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The Post Office and Bus Station sites have high profile and repre-

sent important opportunities to enhance the town’s retail offer in the 

short–medium term. While in mixed ownership overall, key blocks are 

in single ownership, e.g. Post Office, Baptist Church and Morrison’s 

(Bus Station) creating potential for a phased approach in discrete par-

cels, rather than requiring a comprehensive approach.

Relocation of existing uses will need to be resolved, including the 

Sorting Office, Bus Station and potentially the Church.  However, early 

relocation of the Sorting Office would create a key opportunity to 

bring forward an important development site capable of attracting 

early private sector investment.

Subject to relocation of existing uses, the critical need is for a clear 

development brief for these sites to guide future development and 

the identification of anchor tenants.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  Given the complexity of bringing forward these sites 

in combination, the preferred approach is to advance the Post Office 

site as a discrete opportunity within the context of a wider proposal to 

extend INC and the prime retail area onto Wharf Road.

Given the constraints associated with relocation of the Baptist Church, 

which has recently been refurbished, a development scheme should 

be configured that leaves the Church in-site in the short – medium 

term.

The public sector needs to take a pro-active role in working with the 

Post Office to secure a relocation opportunity and work up a rede-

velopment scheme that can be marketed to attract development/oc-

cupier interest.  Bus Station redevelopment would be Phase 2 of the 

scheme and subject to the successful delivery of Phase 1.

Financial Appraisal  : The Post Office site is of sufficient size to accom-

modate a larger floorplate retail unit with potential for residential 

apartments on upper floors, creating a landmark building in this 

‘gateway’ location.  Indicative development appraisal suggests a vi-

able scheme can be configured, subject to the cost of relocation of the 

existing use (see opposite).

 Policy alignment : The scheme is consistent with current Develop-

ment Plan policies but will require a detailed planning brief to gov-

ern development delivery given the high profile location of the site.  

Stronger policies to encourage in-centre development will improve 

investor confidence and thus enhance delivery prospects.

Timescale : This project is considered to be a medium priority for mas-

terplan delivery given the prominence of the Post Office and Bus Station 

sites in this area of the town, but the scheme is of lesser importance 

than Station Point and Greyfriars in terms of enhancing the town’s sub-

regional role.  Delivery is potentially medium term, subject to the timing 

of relocations, but could be delivered within a short timescale once the 

site is made available to the market.

DEVELOPMENT APPRAISAL INFORMATION

• Phasing

- Start on site at month 6

- Phase 1 Post Office site

- 12,200 sq ft of retail

- 45 flats

- Phase 2 Bus Station site

- 16,300 sq ft of retail

- 50 flats

- 12 months to build each phase

- 12 months for sale of flats following completion of each phase

- Retail investments sold on completion (ie pre-lets assumed)

• Values

- Retail  - rent of £20 psf overall with 12 month rent free and 6%   

net investment yield

- Flats - £130,000 each (£200 psf )

• Costs

- Fixed build costs (demolition and infrastructure) - £90,000

- Unit build costs:-

- Retail - £60 psf

- Flats - £90 psf

- Parking - £7,500 per space

• Outcome

- Scheme overall produces positive site value of c. £2.15m

• Comments

- The significant residual site value and profit margin assumed 

(20%) indicates that it should be possible for this scheme to be procured 

by the private sector. However, it will be necessary to evaluate the cost 

of relocating, in particular, the bus station to establish whether or not 

the scheme can be entirely procured without public sector subsidy

 



Final report
100

Grantham MASTERPLAN

en
h

a
n

cin
g

 g
ra

n
th

a
m

 a
s a

 d
estin

atio
n

9

 



101

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.9 Enhancing Grantham as a destination

Further development within the town centre is necessary in 

order to improve the appeal of Grantham as a place to visit and 

spend more time in. This needs to be an exciting and attractive 

development that will draw people from a wide catchment and 

become part of the towns’ distinctive offer.

 



Final report
102

Grantham MASTERPLAN

cinema

view of new development at greyfriars

 



103

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : greyfriars

DESCRIPTION

Development of under-utilised land to the rear of Westgate west, to 

create a major new retail and leisure destination for Grantham, includ-

ing residential use, with ‘lanes’ linking to Westgate and Market Place

RATIONALE

Strategic

To deliver a ‘step change’ in the profile of Grantham’s town 

centre retail/leisure offer and secure representation from key opera-

tors capable of increasing the town’s penetration of sub-regional/

regional catchments.  The site is capable of accommodating larger 

retail/leisure floorplates, attracting regional operators.

Local

To make beneficial use of under-used land close to the town 

centre, closely integrated with the commercial core and achieve 

greater concentration of retail/leisure activity in the urban centre.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  An uncovered shopping centre containing   

  retail and restaurant units, c. 4 screen cinema, flats 

  and associated car parking – more particularly:-

  48,000 sq ft of shops/restaurants

  12,000 sq ft cinema

  Car parking – 60 spaces for flats and 100 for public 

  use

  

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for buildings to have a vertical mix of uses to 

achieve storey heights. Make provision for active retail uses at 

ground floor especially around public spaces such as cafes, 

restaurants and specialist shops

4 Include parking for residential units which is adequate for their 

needs but which does not adversely affect the urban form and   

character of the area. Car parking provision at less than   

one space per unit will be appropriate where good

quality alternatives are integrated and where there is good   

access to public transport. On site parking for all uses, including 

multi-storey solutions, should be concealed behind building 

frontages or below buildings in such a way that active frontages 

are maintained at street level. Car parking for the disabled   

should also be included on site

5 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets or 

in rear courts.

6 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Greyfriars, Westgate, Conduit Lane and the former   

Cattle Market site

7 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 storeys 

in height allowing for key buildings of up to 4 storeys

8 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

9 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

10 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

11 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
104

Grantham MASTERPLAN

view of market place with greyfriars development in the background

 



105

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The site currently lacks profile and linkage and is in multiple owner-

ship.  It represents a major delivery challenge, but its impact would be 

critical in repositioning Grantham’s offer.  The site falls into two main 

parcels:

- Conduit Lane car park, which is in public ownership

- Greyfriars, to the rear of Westgate in mixed private ownership.

The principal landowners have expressed positive interest in 

achieving redevelopment.

Conduit Lane could be brought forward as a free-standing develop-

ment opportunity given physical separation and public ownership but 

value could be enhanced through a comprehensive approach linked 

with Greyfriars.

Access issues will need to be fully addressed in terms of vehicular 

routes from key arrival points and pedestrian routes to Westgate.  This 

may require further strategic acquisitions in line with detailed scheme 

proposals.

The disposition of retail/leisure uses will need to be carefully 

planned through a detailed masterplan to create an optimum layout 

and maximise potential values.

There is significant potential market interest in this scheme but the 

scheme will need to attract confirmed end users in advance of deliv-

ery commitments, including major leisure /retail occupiers.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  This is a major and complex scheme, but the will-

ingness of the current owners to advance redevelopment is a very 

positive starting point.  While the public sector will need to engage in 

pro-active project management, the scheme should be capable of at-

tracting private sector lead developer interest, subject to appropriate 

landowner agreements to facilitate a comprehensive approach.  Joint 

working between the landowners and SKDC to assemble a detailed 

development brief is required as a basis for marketing the opportunity 

to developer/end users.  An effective developer engagement strategy 

is required, possibly through development competition.  This could 

be co-ordinated by the public sector but with a view to a joint venture 

approach to delivery, integrating the public and private sector inputs.

Financial Appraisal  : Indicative development appraisal suggests that, 

on the basis of the assumed retail, leisure and residential mix, a viable 

scheme could be configured (see over).  This is highly sensitive, however, 

to securing anchor tenants to drive maximum values.  The impact of 

incentives to secure key occupiers, such as a cinema, impacts on viability 

prospects.  However, the appraisal suggests that the public sector could 

achieve a positive return on any requirement for pump-priming invest-

ment, such as land contribution through Conduit Lane car park.

 Policy alignment : The scheme is consistent with current Development 

Plan policies but will require a detailed masterplan to govern develop-

ment delivery.  Stronger policies to encourage in-centre and discourage 

out-of-centre development will improve investor confidence and thus 

enhance delivery prospects.

Timescale : This project is considered to be a high priority for masterplan 

delivery given its key role in re-positioning Grantham’s retail/leisure of-

fer.  While the complexity of the scheme will mitigate against short-term 

delivery, the co-operation of landowners points to medium-term deliv-

ery prospects, subject to effective project management support from 

the public sector and proactive marketing of the opportunity.

 



Final report
106

Grantham MASTERPLAN

illustrative layout of greyfriars

 



107

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

DEVELOPMENT APPRAISAL INFORMATION

• Phasing

- It is assumed that the scheme would need to be built as one 

entity

- Start on site – month 12

- Build period – 2 years

- Lettings/sales spread over 12 month period from completion

• Values

- Retail/restaurant  – rent of £20 overall with 12 month rent 

free and net investment yield of 6.5 %

- Cinema – rent of £11 psf  with total incentive (for rent free, fit 

out contribution etc) of £1m and net investment yield of 6.5%

- Two bed flats - £130,000 each (£200 psf )

- One bed flats - £100,000 each (£200 psf )

- Parking  - 100 spaces producing income of £500 per annum 

per space and net investment yield of 6%

• Costs

- Fixed build costs (demolition, public realm and infrastructure) 

- £500,000

- Unit build costs:-

- Retail/restaurants - £60 psf

- Cinema - £100 psf

- Flats - £90 psf

- Car parking - £7,500 per space

• Outcome

- Scheme overall produces positive site value of c. £1.8m

• Comments

- The site value, whilst positive, is unlikely to be sufficient to   

cover the cost of assembling the site and so an element of   

public sector funding is likely to be required to bring the   

scheme forward

- Sensitivity analysis shows that the cinema element creates   

an appraisal deficit of c. £1m ie roughly equivalent to the   

cinema incentive. The advantages of having a cinema    

(magnet for the scheme and the town, enhancement of   

nightime economy, possible relocation of existing cinema to   

facilitate further development etc) will have to be weighed   

against the cost disadvantage

- The cost of providing 25 % affordable housing element is 

estimated at c. £1.4m. A lesser affordable provision would   

clearly help viability.

 



Final report
108

Grantham MASTERPLAN

rein
fo

rcin
g

 civ
ic serv

ice d
eliv

ery

10

 



109

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.10 Reinforcing civic service delivery

Grantham has a collection of civic buildings focused around the 

Guildhall that need to be reinforced and enhanced in order to 

provide the focus for community and public service delivery.

 



Final report
110

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



111

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : guildhall

DESCRIPTION

Enhancement to the Guildhall to improve its potential as a visitor at-

traction and civic asset for Grantham

RATIONALE

Strategic

To enhance a key civic asset to improve the town’s sub-region-

al role.

Local

To improve the image and profile of the town’s civic quarter to 

support town centre regeneration and economic potential

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  Leisure and cultural activities

  Enhanced Tourist Information Point

  SKDC Customer Service Point

    

2 Any necessary refurbishment should achieve high standards 

of environmental design. Material specification and 

energy management should demonstrate responsible   

environmental design principles

3 Provision for re-using the front entrance to make the use of 

the building more legible to visitors

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The Guildhall represents an important asset for Grantham and has 

the potential for an enhanced role as a leisure and civic facility.  The 

Council controls the asset and therefore can progress delivery on an 

enhancement programme without constraint, subject to funding

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  The Council will lead this project.  The initial step shall 

be a detailed review of the form and function of the Guildhall and the 

development of a masterplan for its enhancement and re-configura-

tion

Financial Appraisal  : No specific scheme has been devised/appraised 

at this stage.  External funding is likely to be required, including Lot-

tery bodies being the most likely sources, match-funded by Council 

funding and potentially private sector sponsorship.  The long-term 

revenue implications will need to be fully assessed to ensure long-

term sustainability of this important town asset.

 Policy alignment : No issues

Timescale : This is a low priority project, given that the Guildhall per-

forms an acceptable role at present, but has unrealised potential that 

should be examined.  Delivery of an enhancement could be achieved 

in the short-term, subject to funding being made available.  Early work 

on an enhancement scheme and external funding bids should be 

progressed.

 



Final report
112

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



113

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : community and well being centre

DESCRIPTION

Expansion of civic service and health facilities onto sites fronting St. 

Catherine’s Road, including ancillary residential and retail develop-

ment

RATIONALE

Strategic

To strengthen town centre civic service facilities to create 

a ‘hub’ of provision and ‘one stop’ facility reflecting Grantham’s en-

hanced sub-regional role.

Local

To improve the attractiveness of the town’s civic quarter, to act 

as a draw for town centre uses and support town centre vitality and 

viability.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  Community facilities

  Health services + associated retail

  Residential

  Library

    

2 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets 

or in rear courts.

3 Development should be divided into blocks that allow 

frequent visual, pedestrian and servicing connections   

particulary between St Peters Hill and Welham Street

4 Any new development should have variety in height and form 

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should 

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 

storeys in height.

5 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

6 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

7 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

8 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
114

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



115

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

This area comprises a mix of uses unrelated to the core function of 

this area as a civic quarter.  Existing leisure uses, such as the cinema, 

while of local significance, do not provide the level of sub-regional 

offer that is required.  The focus for such uses in the masterplan will be 

Greyfriars.

Delivery will require a clear definition of the mix of additional public 

sector service functions that could be accommodated on the sites 

through a review of existing town centre provision. Options could 

include relocation of the existing library and expansion of health care 

provision.

Existing uses, such as the cinema, would need to be relocated.  Sub-

ject to the quality of the operation, this could potentially be relocated 

to Greyfriars, but it is important to ensure that a new cinema is of the 

quality to act as a sub-regional attraction.  The existing car park site 

could offer opportunity for mixed use including civic uses and resi-

dential

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  The concept of the civic quarter will require further de-

velopment and master planning to determine a precise mix of activity 

for future expansion.  The Council should take the lead, in conjunction 

with other public sector agencies such as the County Council and PCT.  

The Council will need to review its own accommodation strategy as 

part of this process.

Financial Appraisal  : A detailed scheme will need to be devised prior 

to any meaningful financial appraisal

 Policy alignment : No issues

Timescale : This is a low priority project given that it is not fundamen-

tal to the masterplan.  However, in the short-term clear planning poli-

cies are required to confirm the range of uses to be promoted in the 

future.  This will restrict any further retail or leisure use, which could 

conflict with the enhancement of the town centre.  Delivery times-

cales are likely to be medium-term, pending a full assessment of civic 

service delivery in the town centre

 



Final report
116

Grantham MASTERPLAN

en
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 u

rba
n

 liv
in

g

11

 



117

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.11 Encouraging urban living

People living within the town centre will encourage more activ-

ity at different times of the day and provide the opportunity for 

people to live and work within a walkable distance

 



Final report
118

Grantham MASTERPLAN

view along station boulevard towards grantham station

 



119

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : station point

DESCRIPTION

Development of new urban housing as part of new mixed use quarter 

linked to rail station and town centre.  Residential use will be ancil-

lary to the principal role of the site as a new business quarter for 

Grantham.

RATIONALE

Strategic

To enhance Grantham’s urban housing offer by improving the 

quality and choice of housing inclose proximity to the town centre, 

seeking to attract and retain higher skilled labour to support econom-

ic diversification.

Local

To ensure a mixed used approach to Station Point and im-

prove the potential viability of the proposed office component.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  50 town houses of 1,500 sq ft net each

  60 two bed flats of 650 sq ft each

  

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for buildings to have a vertical mix of uses to 

achieve storey heights. Make provision for active retail uses at 

ground floor especially around public spaces such as cafes, 

restaurants and specialist shops (subject to market demand)

4 Include parking for residential units which is adequate for their 

needs but which does not adversely affect the urban form and   

character of the area. Car parking provision at less than   

one space per unit will be appropriate where good

quality alternatives are integrated and where there is good   

access to public transport. On site parking for all uses, including 

multi-storey solutions, should be concealed behind building 

frontages or below buildings in such a way that active frontages 

are maintained at street level. Car parking for the disabled   

should also be included on site

5 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Station boulevard and Railway Terrace and Queen   

Street

6 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 storeys 

in height allowing for key buildings of up to 5 storeys

7 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

8 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

9 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

10 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
120

Grantham MASTERPLAN

illustrative layout for station point

 



121

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The site is in mixed ownership (principally Tanvic Tyres and Jews-

ons timber merchants).  Redevelopment would necessitate relocat-

ing existing uses and sufficient incentive for current landowners to 

participate in a development project – the provision of an acceptable 

level of rail user car parking will also be required.  Existing residential 

properties add to the complexity of the local assembly requirements.

There is potential market demand for residential apartments in 

Grantham, with proximity to rail services and an improving town 

centre being key market drivers. It will be important to bring forward 

development in mixed phases of residential and employment use to 

maximise cross funding opportunities between these uses.  

Existing access arrangements to the site will require re-configura-

tion and the proposals include a new access/spine road through the 

site.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  This is a complex scheme which is likely to require a 

public sector led delivery approach to address strategic constraints 

such as land assembly, preferably in partnership with a lead private 

sector development partner. Given the land ownership pattern, 

piecemeal development is unlikely to be achievable and will require a 

comprehensive approach, led by a detailed development brief.  While 

development will come forward in phases, in response to market de-

mand, site assembly, preparation and servicing is likely to be required 

in advance.  This will be a critical role for the public sector, with a view 

to a public/private partnership approach to on-site development 

delivery and sharing of any development returns.

Financial Appraisal  : Indicative development appraisal suggests a 

significant potential viability gap based on current development mix 

and values (see opposite).  This could be reduced through refinement 

of the scheme, including the potential to reduce affordable housing 

requirements but points to the need for strong commitment from the 

public sector to deliver this important proposal for Grantham’s future.

 Policy alignment : Alignment of planning policy is required to confirm 

the mixed-use proposals and support future land assembly processes.  

Given the expressed resistance of current landowners, a clear plan-

ning policy position will be required to support any potential require-

ment to resort to compulsory purchase.

Prioritisation : This project is considered to be a high priority for mas-

terplan delivery, requiring early commitment of project management 

resources to move the project forward.  The scale and complexity of 

the scheme, however, points to a long-term delivery strategy.

DEVELOPMENT APPRAISAL INFORMATION

• Phasing

- Start on site and hotel land sale at month 6

- 3 phases of offices/residential

- 9 months to build each phase

- Each phase sold (12 months after completion of construction)   

before subsequent phase starts

- Site works overlap phases 1 and 2

- LH office investment sold on completion (ie pre-let assumed)

• Values

- FH offices - £150 psf

- LH offices - £12 psf with 12 month rent free period and 8% net   

investment yield

- Town houses - £270,000 each (£180 psf )

- Flats - £130,000 each (£200 psf )

- Hotel – Land sale at £500,000 

• Costs

- Fixed build costs (demolition, groundworks, new road and   

infrastructure) - £740,000

- Unit build costs:-

- FH offices and residential - £85 psf gross

- LH offices - £95 psf gross

• Outcome

- Scheme overall requires c. £1.25m of gap funding plus funding 

for site purchase

• Comments

- Viability is adversely effected by high level of infrastructure cost 

and 25% affordable housing assumptions

- Residential element alone should be viable

- Office values are relatively untested in Grantham and may be   

conservative. In particular:

- If early office phase sold well higher values could be established 

for subsequent phases

- Value of FH offices is very sensitive to yield adopted. If a tenant 

of good covenant (eg the “back office” function of a London 

based company or government department could be    

attracted on a lease of acceptable length (10 years plus) then a   

significantly lower yield and higher value could result

- At least initially, the scheme will require public sector    

intervention and subsidy to bring it forward.

 



Final report
122

Grantham MASTERPLAN

view along green mile and new development at castlegate

 



123

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 2 : castlegate

DESCRIPTION

Redevelopment of former Kwik Save site for urban housing in the 

historic core of the town.  The scheme potentially forms a key element 

within the project referred to previously as the Green Mile.

RATIONALE

Strategic

Enhanced diversity and choice in residential offer within the 

town centre, to attract and retain higher skilled labour to support 

economic diversity.

Local 

Early redevelopment of key site in the centre of the town, 

enhancing urban form and supporting the ongoing enhancement of 

the historic core of Grantham, well integrated with the town centre, 

including Green Mile proposal

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  30 town houses of 1,500 sq ft net each

  18 two bed flats of 650 sq ft each

  

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for active retail uses at ground floor especially 

around public spaces such as cafes, restaurants and specialist 

shops

4 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets or 

in rear courts.

5 Include parking for residential units which is adequate for their 

needs but which does not adversely affect the urban form and   

character of the area. Car parking provision at less than   

one space per unit will be appropriate where good

quality alternatives are integrated and where there is good   

access to public transport. On site parking for all uses, including 

multi-storey solutions, should be concealed behind building 

frontages or below buildings in such a way that active frontages 

are maintained at street level. Car parking for the disabled   

should also be included on site

6 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Finkin Street and the Park

7 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 2 storeys 

in height allowing for key buildings of up to 3 storeys

8 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

9 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

10 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

11 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
124

Grantham MASTERPLAN

illustrative layout for castlegate

 



125

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The Kwik Save site is being advanced as an early project in 

Grantham’s regeneration through disposal for residential develop-

ment.  An effective development brief is required to ensure that the 

scheme delivers maximum benefit in terms of masterplan principles.

There is strong market demand from regional/national housebuild-

ers for the site and there are no significant delivery constraints.

.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : An effective redevelopment scheme can be delivered, 

with the public sector role being to establish a clear development 

brief based on masterplan principles.

Financial Appraisal  : The site is being disposed of at open market 

value.  There are no viability issues..

 Policy alignment : No issues.

Prioritisation : This is a low priority scheme in terms of masterplan de-

livery, other than the benefits of securing early redevelopment of the 

site for beneficial use.  Delivery will be achieved in the short-term.

 



Final report
126

Grantham MASTERPLAN

view of new development at greyfriars

 



127

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 3 : greyfriars

DESCRIPTION

Provision of residential uses as part of the retail/leisure ‘destination’ 

scheme west of Watergate

RATIONALE

Strategic

To enhance the diversity and choice in urban living within 

the town centre to attract and retain higher skilled labour to support 

economic diversification.

Local 

To deliver an effective mixed used outcome on this key town 

centre development site and to support scheme viability.

To achieve development compatibility with adjoininguses.

POLICY STATEMENT

1 To provide a mix of uses that may include:

  50 two bed flats of 650 sq ft each

  50 one bed flats of 500 sq ft each

  

2 Comprise ground floor units designed to be suitable for 

either residential or retail/commercial uses and capable of 

conversion to respond to market demand 

3 Make provision for buildings to have a vertical mix of uses to 

achieve storey heights. Make provision for active retail uses at 

ground floor especially around public spaces such as cafes, 

restaurants and specialist shops

4 Provide for servicing by goods vehicles either on side streets or 

in rear courts.

5 Include parking for residential units which is adequate for their 

needs but which does not adversely affect the urban form and   

character of the area. Car parking provision at less than   

one space per unit will be appropriate where good

quality alternatives are integrated and where there is good   

access to public transport. On site parking for all uses, including 

multi-storey solutions, should be concealed behind building 

frontages or below buildings in such a way that active frontages 

are maintained at street level. Car parking for the disabled   

should also be included on site

6 Development should be divided into blocks that allow frequent 

visual, pedestrian and servicing connections particulary 

between Greyfriars, Westgate, Cnduit Lane and the former Cattle 

Market site.

7 Any new development should have variety in height and form   

to create a more interesting street scene. Corner blocks should   

be generally of a higher scale. Include buildings up to 3 storeys 

in height allowing for key buildings of up to 5 storeys

8 Building frontages should generally stand at the front of plots,

defining the full extent of blocks and enclosing each public   

street or route

9 Buildings should achieve high standards of environmental   

design. Material specification and energy management should   

demonstrate responsible environmental design principles

10 Materials for buildings and the public realm should be of natural

or high quality. The use of glass maybe more appropriate around

public spaces in particular, to help with achieving transparency 

between the public realm and internal building activity . A   

more detailed palette of materials and colours should be agreed 

jointly between developers and the District Council.

11 Provide balconies, verandahs and roof terraces to help articulate 

frontages and promote surveillance around public spaces and   

streets

 



Final report
128

Grantham MASTERPLAN

view of market place with greyfriars development in the background

 



129

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

The delivery of residential use on the site could be achieved on a 

market led basis (ref. existing planning permission within the site).  

However, a comprehensive approach will achieve better integration of 

residential and commercial uses with the scheme, including provision 

of a residential ‘edge’ to reflect existing housing to the west.  Residen-

tial use proposed is part of mixed use of the Conduit Road car park 

redevelopment and integrated with the rest of the scheme.

The principal landowners have expressed positive interest in the 

overall Greyfriars project.

There is likely to be significant market interest in this scheme and 

the residential element will need to be carefully planned as part of a 

detailed site masterplan to optimise mix and development values.

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency :  This is a major and complex scheme, but the will-

ingness of the current owners to advance redevelopment is a very 

positive starting point.  While the public sector will need to engage in 

pro-active project management, the scheme should be capable of at-

tracting private sector lead developer interest, subject to appropriate 

landowner agreements to facilitate a comprehensive approach.  Joint 

working between the landowners and SKDC to assemble a detailed 

development brief is required as a basis for marketing the opportunity 

to developer/end users.  An effective developer engagement strategy 

is required, possibly through development competition.  This could 

be co-ordinated by the public sector but with a view to a joint venture 

approach to delivery, integrating the public and private sector inputs.

Financial Appraisal  : A freestanding residential project is likely to be 

viable and deliverable by the private sector in isolation. Indicative 

development appraisal of the comprehensive scheme suggests that, 

on the basis of the assumed retail, leisure and residential mix, a vi-

able scheme could be configured. (see over).  This is highly sensitive, 

however, to securing anchor tenants to drive maximum values.  The 

impact of incentives to secure key occupiers, such as a cinema, im-

pacts on viability prospects.  However, the appraisal suggests that the 

public sector could achieve a positive return on any requirement for 

pump-priming investment, such as land contribution through Conduit 

Lane car park.

 Policy alignment : The scheme is consistent with current Development 

Plan policies but will require a detailed masterplan to govern develop-

ment delivery.  Stronger policies to encourage in-centre and discourage 

out-of-centre development will improve investor confidence and thus 

enhance delivery prospects.

Timescale : This project is considered to be a high priority for masterplan 

delivery given its key role in re-positioning Grantham’s retail/leisure of-

fer.  While the complexity of the scheme will mitigate against short-term 

delivery, the co-operation of landowners points to medium-term deliv-

ery prospects, subject to effective project management support from 

the public sector and proactive marketing of the opportunity.

 



Final report
130

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



131

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

DEVELOPMENT APPRAISAL INFORMATION

• Phasing

- It is assumed that the scheme would need to be built as one 

entity

- Start on site – month 12

- Build period – 2 years

- Lettings/sales spread over 12 month period from completion

• Values

- Retail/restaurant  – rent of £20 overall with 12 month rent 

free and net investment yield of 6.5 %

- Cinema – rent of £11 psf  with total incentive (for rent free, fit 

out contribution etc) of £1m and net investment yield of 6.5%

- Two bed flats - £130,000 each (£200 psf )

- One bed flats - £100,000 each (£200 psf )

- Parking  - 100 spaces producing income of £500 per annum 

per space and net investment yield of 6%

• Costs

- Fixed build costs (demolition, public realm and infrastructure) 

- £500,000

- Unit build costs:-

- Retail/restaurants - £60 psf

- Cinema - £100 psf

- Flats - £90 psf

- Multi-storey car park - £7,500 per space

• Outcome

- Scheme overall produces positive site value of c. £1.8m

• Comments

- The site value, whilst positive, is unlikely to be sufficient to   

cover the cost of assembling the site and so an element of   

public sector funding is likely to be required to bring the   

scheme forward

- Sensitivity analysis shows that the cinema element creates   

an appraisal deficit of c. £1m ie roughly equivalent to the   

cinema incentive. The advantages of having a cinema    

(magnet for the scheme and the town, enhancement of   

nightime economy, possible relocation of existing cinema to   

facilitate further development etc) will have to be weighed   

against the cost disadvantage

- The cost of providing 25 % affordable housing element is 

estimated at c. £1.4m. A lesser affordable provision would   

clearly help viability.

 



Final report
132

Grantham MASTERPLAN

creatin
g

 d
istin

ctiv
e g

atew
ays

12

 



133

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

The Strategic Objective

4.12 Creating distinctive gateways and arrival points

The objective is to ensure key gateways and arrival points into 

Grantham are distinctive and memorable and provide a clear indica-

tion of the quality of environment behind them.

 



Final report
134

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



135

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : eight gateways

DESCRIPTION

Creating high quality gateways at:

the rail station

Harlaxton and Wharf Road

A52 and A607 at the ASDA junction

top of Watergate

top of Castlegate

northern end of Wyndham Park

Bridge close to Agnes Street

London Road and Wharf Road

RATIONALE

For visitors and residents to realise they are entering a different and 

distinctive place based on high quality development and public 

realm design. It also supports the legibility of a place and defining 

different character areas 

POLICY STATEMENT

1 Ensure the inclusion of bespoke public art at the A52 and 

A607 junction at ASDA, top of Watergate, top of Castlegate 

and the northern end of Wyndham Park

2 Encourage the development of a new contemporary   

landmark bridge over the River Witham behind Agnes Street.

3 Build distinctive buildings and spaces at the rail station,  

Harlaxton and Wharf Road and London and Wharf Road at

the former Post Office site in particular.

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Aligning with the Public Art Strategy produced by South Kesteven 

District Council 

Negotiating with Third Party landowners

Funding for public art projects

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council and landowners

Critical Path : Undertake more detailed survey of landownership

   Review public art strategy

Commission artist

  

Funding : South Kesteven District Council, developers, Arts Council

Timescale : Medium

Priority : Low

 



Final report
136

Grantham MASTERPLAN

key v
ista

s, bu
ild

in
g

s a
n

d
 fro

n
ta

g
es 

13

 



137

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

4.13 Enhancing key vistas, buildings and frontages

The objective is to protect key views to St Wulframs Church in 

particular, enhance and improve key frontages and provide key 

buildings at important locations

The Strategic Objective

 



Final report
138

Grantham MASTERPLAN
 



139

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Project Sheet 1 : key vistas, frontages and buildings

DESCRIPTION

Identifying important visual corridors especially to St Wulframs, 

highlighting areas of frontage improvement and the location of key 

buildings

RATIONALE

The importance of protecting visual corridors and identifying key 

buildings adds to the way people orientate themselves around town 

by using them as visual reference points. St Wulframs Church is also a 

defining building within Grantham  where its setting and importance 

should be protected 

POLICY STATEMENT

All new development should have active frontages on to public 

streets, lanes and footpaths including windows, entrances and doors

Improved frontages through better aesthetic quality, public realm 

treatment and new development should be considered along Wharf 

Road and Union Street in particular.

No new development should occur that will obscure views of St 

Wulframs Church especially looking east from the A52/A607 ASDA 

junction

Key buildings to be located at Wharf Place (the former Post Office 

site), at the corner of Conduit Lane and Greyfriars, outside the rail 

station, at the corner of Wharf Road and Harlaxton Road and as part 

of the new development at Castlegate. 

KEY DELIVERY ISSUES

Development pressure along key visual corridors

Negotiating with Third Party landowners

DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Agency : South Kesteven District Council and developers

Critical Path : Undertake a Tall Buildings Study

Development of site schemes

  

Funding : South Kesteven District Council, developers and landown-

ers

Timescale : Dependant on development projects for key buildings.

Improved frontages medium timescale

Priority : Medium

 



Final report
140

Grantham MASTERPLAN

4achieving the vision5illustrative masterplan

 



141

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

 5.0 illustrative masterplan

if the level of development proposed is delivered and the changes in public realm are realised

that demonstrates one possible illustrat
ion of how Grantham will look 

5.0 Illustrative masterplan

The illustrative masterplan on the following page shows how Grantham can be 

developed in the future with high quality interventions within the town. These 

include:

New development at the Station through mainly office and residential uses 

with a consideration to new opportunities for learning and skills development

New retail, leisure and cultural opprtunities at Greyfriars as part of a major 

addition to the town that will hope to attract major new retailers and boost the 

evening economy

New and Innovative development at the junction of Wharf Road and London 

Road which will be a building of landmark quality at a key gateway and intersec-

tion.

A Green Mile through the town which will encourage the use of sustainable 

materials, buildings and modes of travel connecting the Park with the Canal Basin

Major improvements to key public spaces and streets such as St Peters Hill, 

Market Place and High Street reclaiming them for pedestrians

45

 



Final report
142

Grantham MASTERPLAN

illustrative masterplan : day

 



143

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

night

 



Final report
144

Grantham MASTERPLAN

4achieving the vision6Consultation

 



145

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

6.0 consulting with people

of the report and the development of proposals within it

agencies and organisations that were con
sulted during the preparation 

6.0 Consultation

Springfield Investments     Jacky Smith - Chair GTCMC

Buckminster Trust     Roger Stafford 

Grantham Estates     John Hindmarch

Autumn Park / Lindpet Holdings   Peter Burrows

Grantham Journal     Nick Woodhead  - Editor

Duncan & Toplis Accountants    Duncan Andrew

SKDC       Cllr Alan Parkin

Town Charter Trustees     Cllr Mary Wheat

Cabinet Portfolio Holder - Economic    Cllr John Smith

Head of Policy Planning and Economic Regeneration Mike Sibthorpe

Team Leader - Economic Development   Neil Cuttell

Town Centre Manager     Nick Vass

SKDC & Local Business     Cllr Nick Craft

Civic Society      John Knowles - Chairman

Tenants and Residents Association

Morrisons (Isaac Newton Centre)   

Woolworths (Chair Grantham Business Club)  Robert Nuttall 

Marks and Spencers

Lincs County Highways     Brian Thompson

Lincs County Highways     Martin Clark

Lincs County Highways     Phil Oldfield

Post Office -      Strategic Planning

Pulfreys Coaches

Centrebus

Lincs Roadcar Co Ltd

Network Rail

National Trust

46

 



Final report
146

Grantham MASTERPLAN

4achieving the visionAAppendix

 



147

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

Commentary of indicative appraisals

Indicative appraisals have been undertaken on the key strategic sites to 

test commercial viability and to ascertain whether there is likely to be suf-

ficient incentive for the sites to be brought forward by the private sector or 

whether there would be a need for public sector intervention (the exception 

being the former Kwiksave site as its commercial viability has been pre-de-

termined).

The appraisals are based on a number of assumptions and are only designed 

to provide a broad indication of how they could potentially be brought 

forward.

Standard Assumptions

- Net floor areas 85% of gross areas

- Net initial investment yields calculated assuming purchaser’s costs 

estimated at 5.75%

- Developer’s bank fees calculated as 0.75% of borrowings of 70% of 

total development cost

- Cost of finance calculated at 6.5% per annum

- Professional fees estimated at 10% of build cost

- Contingency – 3% of build cost

- Agents’ fees:

- Letting 10% of one year’s rent

- Investment/direct sale – 1% of sale price

- Legal fees: 

- Site purchase and investment/direct sale – 0.5%

- Letting – 5% of one year’s rent

- Promotion - £75,000 per scheme

- Affordable Housing – for residential elements of schemes, affordable 

housing requirement reflected as a commuted sum calculated as 

half the value of 25% of the residential units i.e. 12.5% of the total 

residential value

- S.106 payments (to cover contributions to eg roadworks, public 

realm, education) estimated at a flat rate of £5 psf net

- Developer’s profit – 20% of cost

NB

- Advice on scheme mix, phasing and values from 

Knight Frank

- Costs and build periods adopted are indicative   

benchmark figures 

- The indicative results of the appraisals should be 

treated as being for ‘Illustrative purposes only’.

4

 



Final report
148

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Market Commentary 

Retail

The principal development opportunities that have been identified as part 

of the masterplanning excercise have a potential capacity to accommodate 

7,292 sq m (76,500 sq ft) of retail space primarily for bulky and non-bulky 

goods with some A3 uses. The total figure comprises 2,647 sq m (28, 500 

sq ft) that would be accommodated on the Post Office/Bus Station site and 

4,459 sq m (48,000 sq ft) that would be accommodated on the Greyfriars site.  

Both sites are located within the town centre. 

The total figure falls short of the total floor space capacity identified by White 

Young Green, who undertook a retail floor space capacity and calculated that 

there was potential capacity for 20,347 sq m (200,00 sq ft) of non-bulky and 

bulky goods to the year 2016. 

Whilst there have been numerous out of town developments over recent 

years, that have contributed to the fragmentation of the retail offer, the mar-

ket for new development within the town centre has not been tested due to 

the constraints effecting development.  There are currently no available op-

portunities for large retail floor plates (c2500-3000sqft +) in the town centre. 

This has been further evidenced by the decision of Laura Ashley to position 

themselves in an edge of town location on London road.

We consider that the proposed total capacity of 7,292 sq m is a reasonable 

assumption providing there is a catalytic effect that will encourage devel-

opment of the sites within Grantham.  The Post Office site would attract 

considerable developer and occupier interest due to its prominent location, 

particularly if a high profile occupier could be attracted to this site.  This 

would set the precedent for further developments with a greater incentive to 

develop the Bus Station and Greyfriars. There is current interest by retailers in 

Grantham but the opportunities have not been forthcoming.  One particular 

strong requirement by a high quality retailer is for approximately 2,000 sq 

m of floor space within the town centre.  If an occupier of this nature can be 

accommodated within the town centre then it is likely to give confidence to 

the market and encourage further retailers.

The attraction of Greyfriars to occupiers is currently constrained by its 

limited profile.  To attract retailers significant improvements to access 

and linkage would have to be made all of which would involve consid-

erable up front costs to developers.  Developer and retailer confidence 

would be enhanced by the attraction of a key high profile anchor ten-

ant, who in turn in turn is likely to be encouraged by other occupiers in-

terest in the town centre, such as an investment by a high profile retailer 

on the Post Office site.

Examples of other similar successful town centre developments include 

Pescod Square in Boston and the Vancouver Shopping Centre in King’s 

Lynn.  Occupiers interest will also be enhanced by other factors such 

as an improved infrastructure and greater number of people living and 

working in and around the town centre.

 Leisure

The proposed capacity is for a 1,114 sq m (12,000 sq ft) cinema/leisure 

attraction, an 80 bed room hotel and various A3/A4 uses.  The cinema/

leisure attraction is proposed on the Greyfriars site with the intention 

of enhancing the site as a destination location.  There is interest in the 

town centre from leisure operators, however, there are limited oppor-

tunities and their commitment is uncertain until opportunities start 

to materialise.  There is also an existing cinema in Grantham as well as 

a bowling facility.  The existing cinema could potentially be attracted 

to the Greyfriars site but would need some form of incentive.  If, in the 

worst case scenario, a leisure operator could not be attracted to the site 

there is potential to substitute it with retail or residential development, 

which would enhance the viability of the overall development.

The principal A3/A4 uses would be located in and around Greyfriars.  

Interest from these type of occupiers would be dependant upon the 

retail and leisure uses committing to the site first.  There are a number of 

operators that are interested in Grantham but would need an incentive 

before committing to locating in the town centre. 

 



149

Grantham MASTERPLAN

Final report

An 80 bed room hotel is proposed for the Station Gateway site.  The 

location would be attractive to developers and hotel operators 

but would likely require development of the site first before being 

attracted to the site first.  Development of the site would also be de-

pendant upon improvements in visitor numbers to the town centre 

and the establishment of the adjacent office uses.

 Residential 

The principal development opportunities have the potential capac-

ity to accommodate 305 residential units of varying sizes and type 

(excluding the development of the Kwik-Save site for residential 

use).

The market for new build residential apartments is generally untest-

ed, however we consider there is scope for this market to improve 

particularly as there is a shortage of residential land combined with 

the affordability of prices within Grantham in comparison to other 

urban locations.  Developers are keen to secure large scale residen-

tial development opportunities to maintain a pipeline of develop-

ments.  The market will be enhanced by improvements to the town 

centre and its environment.  However, development and take-up 

will be dependant upon prevailing market conditions.  

The proposed capacity is for 3,700 sq m of office space located on 

the Station Gateway site in 2 phases.  The current market for new 

build office space within Grantham is untested and has been con-

strained by market uncertainty.  However, we consider that there is 

potential to attract occupiers by creating the right environment (a 

business park) to stimulate interest.  There have been a number of 

successful developments in competing centres, which has been in 

part due to sites being made available.

Demand is likely to be strongest for freehold self contained op-

portunities suitable for small to medium enterprises with a require-

ment for 92 to 185 sq m units (1,000 to 2,000 sq ft units).  Develop-

ers are unlikely to be interested in bringing forward initial office 

developments until the market has been tested.  If successful the 

remaining phases are likely to be brought forward by the market. 

 



July 2006

 


	Agenda
	5 DRAFT GRANTHAM TOWN CENTRE MASTERPLAN

